
 
CITY OF MAYER  

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

MONDAY, MARCH 9, 2020  
6:30 PM 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Call Meeting to Order  
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Approval of Agenda 

 
4. Public Comment (Please limit comments to 5 minutes) 

 
5. Consent Agenda 

1. Meeting Minutes 
February 10, 2020 Meeting Minutes  
February 10, 2020 Workshop Meeting Minutes 
February 24, 2020 Meeting Minutes  

 
2. Claims  

 
6. Reports and Recommendations of City Departments, Consultants, Commissions and Committees 

1. Administrative 
a. 2020 Long Term Plan  - Abdo Eick and Meyer 
b. Five-Year Street Reconstruction Plan – Calling for a Public Hearing - Resolution 3-9-20-13 

 
2. Park Commission 

a. Discovery Park - Playground Replacement Project 
 

3. Engineering  
a. 2020 Street Improvement Project – Bid Results 

 
7. City Council Reports 

 
8. Other Business  

 
9.  Upcoming Meetings & Events  

March 10, 2020 Park and Recreation Commission Meeting  
March 23, 2020 City Council Meeting 
 

10.  For Your Information 
 

11. Adjournment  

1



MAYER CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – FEBRUARY 10, 2020 
Call Regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor Dodge 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Dodge, Council Members Boder, McNeilly, and Stieve-McPadden 
ABSENT:  Council Member Butterfield 
STAFF:  City Administrator McCallum, Deputy Clerk Gildemeister, and City Engineer Brian 
ALSO PRESENT:   Don Wachholz, Rod Maetzold, Andy Maetzold, Nate McNeilly, Brad Quaas, Gerry 
Thomas, Tom Stifter. 
 
The meeting was opened with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVE AGENDA 
A MOTION was made by Council Member McNeilly with a second by Council Member Stieve-McPadden to 
approve the agenda as presented.  Motion Carried 4/0. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
A MOTION was made by Council Member McNeilly with a second by Council Member Stieve-McPadden to 
approve the Consent Agenda with a correction on page 6.  Motion Carried 4/0.    

1. Approve Minutes of the January 27, 2020 Regular Council Meeting. 
2. Approve Minutes of the January 27, 2020 Council Workshop Meeting. 
3. Approve Claims for the Month of January 2020. Check numbers 22813 to 22846. E-check numbers 

5555 to 5563. Bank check numbers 50104 to 50134. 
4. Approve Resolution 2-10-2020-10 Gambling Exemption for West Carver Ducks Unlimited. 
5. Approve 2020 Liquor Licenses. 
6. Approve Auditor Fee for 2019 and 2020 Long Term Financial Management Plan. 

 
FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 
1. Fire Station Draft Timeline Proposal – City Administrator McCallum presented the Fire Station 

Committee Timeline to Council for approval. On January 27, 2020 City Council Workshop Meeting, the 
Fire Station Committee presented information related to their vision and for a new Fire Station building.    
At that time, Council had questions that still needed to be answered. The Fire Station Committee met on 
February 5, 2020 to review and discuss the questions asked by Council. In their timeline proposal, they 
provided data on Response Time, Infrastructure of the Fire Station building, Capital Investments, 
Marketing, and Information Strategy. Council provided further feedback. Council suggested researching 
other avenues on how to get the message to residents. Council Member McNeilly stated she would like to 
review the financials in more depth and requested another meeting with Ehlers to go over the financials. 
Mayor Dodge stated that the March Open Houses are scheduled too soon and felt that not enough 
information has been provided to the residents. Discussion on the infrastructure led to questions regarding a 
contract with Brunton Architects. Council asked if the City has a contract with Brunton. City Administrator 
McCallum stated that the City will need to enter-into contract with Brunton for drafting prior architectural 
plans and attending Fire Station Committee meetings. Council asked who authorized the agreement to pay 
Brunton. City Administrator acknowledged she gave the authorization. Council Member Boder asked City 
Administrator to provide numbers on how much the City owes Brunton. Mayor Dodge suggested moving 
discussions on contact negotiation with Brunton to a Work Session. Council stated their need to see the Fire 
Stations message to the residents before they can approve the timeline. Council wanted to make it clear that 

2



the Fire Station Timeline is considered tentative and proper steps need to be followed before moving 
forward with decisions. Council agreed that the Fire Station Committee can continue to move forward as 
discussions continue. Council directed City Administrator to schedule a Work Session discussion with 
Ehlers before the first open house and invited the Fire Station Committee to attend. Council directed City 
Administrator to provide the draft contract with Brunton Architects along with cost estimates. 
Council Member McNeilly thanked the Fire Station Committee for taking their time to attend tonight’s 
meeting. 
 

CITY ENGINEER 
 

1. Approve Resolution 2-10-20-11 Application to Public Facilities Authority for 2020 Water Projects – 
City Engineer Brian is requesting City Council approve the application to the Public Facilities Authority for 
the 2020 New Production Well and Well Rehabilitation, and Water Treatment Plant Improvement Projects. 
A MOTION to approve Resolution 2-10-20-11 Application to Public Facilities Authority for the 2020 Water 
Projects was made by Council Member Stieve-McPadden and seconded by Council Member Boder.  
Motion carried 4/0. 

 
COUNCIL REPORTS 

• Council Member McNeilly reminded everyone about the Discovery Park Open House tonight at City 
Hall. 

• Mayor Dodge stated that the Fire Station Committee presented the Fire Station Proposal Power point to 
the Volunteer Firefighters at the February 5th meeting. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

• Council acknowledged the February 5, 2020 Fire Station Committee Minutes. 
 
ADJOURN 
There being no further business, a MOTION was made by Council Member McNeilly and seconded by Council 
Member Boder to adjourn the meeting at 7:20 p.m.  Motion Carried 4/0. 

 
 

                           _________________________________ 
                                  Mike Dodge, Mayor 

 
Attest: __________________________________ 
            Janell Gildemeister, Deputy Clerk MCMC 

3



MAYER CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MINUTES – FEBRUARY 10, 2020 
 
Call Work Session to order at 7:21 p.m. by Mayor Dodge. 
 
PRESENT: Mayor Dodge, Council Members Boder, McNeilly, and Stieve-McPadden. 
ABSENT: Council Member Butterfield 
STAFF:  City Administrator McCallum, City Engineer Brian, and Deputy Clerk Gildemeister  
ALSO PRESENT:  
. 

 
1. Discussion on Residential Refuse Collection Services Request For Proposal: City 

Administrator McCallum presented Council with a draft RFP for Sanitation Services for the 
residents of Mayer. Council reviewed the draft RFP and gave some feedback. Council agreed 
with the draft proposal and suggested requesting both three (3) and five (5) year terms of contract 
when sending out requests for proposals. Council discussed including some language on how 
complaints with be relayed to the City. City Administrator set an issue date of February 11, 2020 
and a respond by date of March 11, 2020. Council approved of the timeline. 

 
MEETING ADJOURNED 
There being no further business, the work session was adjourned at 7:28 p.m. 

 
 

                           _______________________________ 
                                 Mike Dodge, Mayor 

 
Attest: __________________________________ 
            Janell Gildemeister, Deputy Clerk MCMC 

4



MAYER CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – FEBRUARY 24, 2020 
Call Regular meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor Dodge 
 
PRESENT: Acting Mayor Boder, Council Members Butterfield, McNeilly, and Stieve-McPadden 
ABSENT:  Mayor Dodge 
STAFF:  City Administrator McCallum, Deputy Clerk Gildemeister and City Engineer Martini 
ALSO PRESENT:   Don Wachholz, Diane Langenbach, Greta Pudas, Lisa Stine 
 
The meeting was opened with the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVE AGENDA 
A MOTION was made by Council Member Butterfield with a second by Council Member Stieve-McPadden to 
approve the agenda as presented.  Motion Carried 4/0 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
None 
 
APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
A MOTION was made by Council Member Stieve-McPadden with a second by Council Member Butterfield to 
approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  Motion Carried 4/0.    

1. Acknowledge City Engineer Summary Report of Projects during the Month of January 2020. 
2. Acknowledge Public Works Report of Activities from January 8, 2020 to February 19, 2020. 
3. Acknowledge Fire Department Report for the Month of January 2020. 
4. Acknowledge Sheriff’s Department Report for the Month of January 2020. 
5. Acknowledge City Administrators Report for the Month of January 2020. 
6. Approve Resolution 2-24-20-121 Gambling Exemption for Mayer Lions Club. 

 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

 
1. MnDOT Update Presentation on 2020 Highway 25 Projects – Diane Langenbach, MnDot South Area 

Engineer, presented a Power Point update on the 2020 Highway 25 Projects. Ms. Langenbach reviewed 
upcoming Highway 25 Projects, stating that Highway 25 Mayer to Watertown will begin summer of 2020. 
Highway 25 south of Mayer to Highway 5 will begin in 2021.  
City of Mayer projects to begin this July 2020 

• A ¾ inch mill and overlay for preventative maintenance for Highway 25  
• looking into pavement settlement just sought of Regional Trail 
• widening shoulder for bus and RV parking at the Veteran’s Memorial 
• drainage improvements 
• ADA improvements at CSAH 30 & 1st Street that will impact Dakota Rail Trail 
• minor improvements to City trail along the east side of Highway 25. 

 
2. 2019 Audit Presentation – Presentation of 2019 Abdo Eick and Meyers – Greta Pudas of ABDO EICK & 

MEYERS appeared before the Council to present the 2019 Financial Audit for the City of Mayer. Ms. Pudas 
reviewed the Significant Audit Findings and stated the nine main areas of compliances showed no 
significant findings. She acknowledged the City of Mayer has a very healthy fund balance and is in a good 
financial position. Council thanked Ms. Pudas for her thorough presentation. 

 
 
 

5



3. Approve Request for Proposal for Refuse and Recycling – Council reviewed the Request for Proposal 
and Proposal Letter Application for Residential Solid Waste and Recycling Services. After some discussion, 
Council recommended a few changes. Council Member Butterfield asked to include an add-on option for 
yard waste collection. Council agreed to remove Holiday Tree collection from the proposal. A MOTION 
was made by Council Member McNeilly and seconded by Council Member Butterfield to Approve the RFP 
for Residential Solid Waste and Recycling Services excluding holiday tree pick-up. Motion Carried 4/0. 

 
PUBLIC WORKS 

 
1. Approve Public Works Seasonal Position – City Staff asked for authorization to advertise for a seasonal 

Public Works employee. The position is a 2020 summer part-time, 30 hour/week, 13 weeks temporary, 
$12.00/hr. position, assigned to parks for mowing, weed whipping, picking up garbage, and watering 
flowerpots. A MOTION to approve Public Works seasonal position was made by Council Member 
McNeilly and seconded by Council Member Butterfield. Motion carried 4/0. 
 

COUNCIL REPORTS 
• Council Member Butterfield stated she attended a meeting with Watertown-Mayer Community 

Education and shared information about the new Licensed Daycare Facility and Community Lounge. 
• Council Member McNeilly gave an update on the Discovery Park Open House. She stated that four 

families came and provided some very good feedback on what equipment they would like to see in the 
park. 

• Council Member Stieve-McPadden stated that she attended a Fire Station Committee Meeting and they 
are discussing the details for the upcoming Open Houses and how to advertise. 

 
OTHER BUSINESS 

• Council Member McNeilly asked for an update on the new audio-visual equipment. Staff stated that the 
equipment installation is complete and working well. The volume will be continued to be adjusted as 
meetings are recorded. 

 
FOR YOUR INFORMATION 

• Acknowledge minutes for the February 11, 2020 Park Board Meeting. 
• Acknowledge minutes for the February 18, 2020 Special Park Board Meeting. 

 
 
ADJOURN 
There being no further business, a MOTION was made by Council Member Boder and seconded by Council 
Member Stieve-McPadden to adjourn the meeting at 6:55 p.m.  Motion Carried 5/0 

 
 

                           _________________________________ 
                                  Mike Dodge, Mayor 

 
Attest: __________________________________ 
            Janell Gildemeister, Deputy Clerk MCMC 

6



22847 Lano Equipment Toolcat $40,934.88
22848 Emergency Medical Training Specialists Fire Department Training $2,200.00
22849 Arinna LLC Electric Utilities $4,230.70
22850 Belle Plaine Herald Community Center - Advertising $200.00
22851 Carver County Taxpayers Services Automark and PollPad Maintenance - Elections $552.50
22852 Carver County Liquor - Background Check $100.00
22853 Cintas Uniforms and Rugs $107.97
22854 City of Hutchinson WWTP Solid Waste Contract $100.00
22855 Culligan - Metro Fire Station $72.62
22856 ECM Publishers Community Center - Advertising $270.00
22857 Emergency Medical Training Specialists Fire Department Training $1,375.00
22858 Great America Financial Services Copier Lease Payment $190.41
22859 Greater MN Communications February 2020 Utility Billing/Newsletter $571.39
22860 Hach Company WWTP - Parts $3,690.36
22861 Henning Excavating Watermain Break - Bluejay Avenue $3,877.00
22862 IUOE Local #49 Union Dues $105.00
22863 Kjohaug Environmental Services Annual Wetland Monitoring Report $660.00
22864 Lano Equipment Misc Supplies - PW $142.65
22865 League of Minnesota Cities One Day - Legislative Conference - McCallum $109.00
22866 Lincoln National Life Insurance Life Insurance and Disability Benefits $202.80
22867 Margaret McCallum Mileage Reimbursement - Elections $182.85
22868 MN Department of Health First Quarter - community connection fee $2,073.00
22869 Mobil - Exxon Public Works $541.56
22870 Municipal Development Group City Planner - Planning Services $213.75
22871 Peak Heating and Cooling Mid Season - Maintenance Service - Community Center $238.50
22872 Ratwik Roszak and Maloney Legal Services $841.00
22873 Security Bank H.S.A. - McCallum $125.00
22874 Utility Consultants  Samples - WTP & WWTP $3,003.90
22875 Bond Trust Services Bond Administrative Fee $475.00
22876 VOID VOID
22877 Abdo Eick and Meyers 2019 Audit $5,700.00

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE LIST 
FEBRUARY 10, 2020 

Checks: 22847 - 22890, 5564E -5587E

7



22878 AEM Workforce Solutions LLC Payroll - February $440.00
22879 Arturo Albanesi JR Utility Credit $52.59
22880 Bolton and Menk Engineering - Street Project/WTP/Misc $17,538.25
22881 Bond Trust Services Bond Administrative Fee $475.00
22882 Carver County Taxpayers Services Auditors Certificate $375.00
22883 Gopher State One Call Inc Locates $18.90
22884 Herald Journal Publishing Inc 2020 Street Improvement Bids $248.40
22885 IUOE Local #49 Health Benefits $3,795.00
22886 Litzau Excavating Inc Hauling Sludge $5,894.77
22887 Tim and Deb Lynch Refund Deposit for Community Center $100.00
22888 Mayer Lumber Co Inc Public Works Supplies $572.19
22889 MNGeek Chromebooks - FD $874.00
22890 Schneider Excavating and Grading Wetland Restoration Project $23,191.00
5564E VOID VOID
5565E Frontier PW Internet $113.98
5566E Delta Dental- MN McCallum - Dental $57.37
5567E VOID VOID
5568E VOID VOID
5569E VOID VOID
5570E VOID VOID
5571E VOID VOID
5572E VOID VOID
5573E VOID VOID
5574E ADP LLC Payroll Processing $84.29
5575E ADP LLC Payroll Processing $85.98
5576E Frontier PW Internet $113.98
5577E Centerpoint Energy WWTP $1,462.06
5578E Centerpoint Energy WTP $123.49
5579E Centerpoint Energy PW Building $199.23
5580E Centerpoint Energy City Hall $885.95
5581E Centerpoint Energy Fire Station $686.09
5582E McLoed Power Assn City Sign $37.48
5583E McLoed Power Assn Street Lights $710.87
5584E Techstar IT Solutions Phone System Management $390.80

8



5585E PERA PERA Benefit $1,409.34
5586E ADP LLC Employee Wages $10,217.10
5587E Security Bank January ACH Fee $35.60

$143,275.55

9



10



Request for Council Action Memorandum 
Item: 2020 Long Term Plan – Abdo Eick and Meyer   
Meeting Date: March 9, 2020  
Presented By: Margaret McCallum, City Administrator 
 
Recommendations/Council Action/Motion Requested: 
To provide comment and feedback to the City of Mayer’s long term plan.  
 
Details: 
Representative, Steve McDonald, from Abdo, Eick and Meyer will be presenting and asking for 
feedback on the 2020 Long Term.  
 
The Long Term Plan is compiled and used by the City to plan for projects accordingly with the 
resources available. The long term plan includes property tax information, tax rate, fund 
balance and debt projections based on project input from the City Council, City Staff and 
Commissions.  
 
The projection estimates through to December 31, 2025.  
 
Attachments.  
Long Term Plan – Abdo, Eick and Meyer Financial Solutions, LLC.  
 
 
 
 
  

11



CITY OF MAYER, MINNESOTA 
LONG TERM PLAN - UPDATED MARCH 4, 2020 

Prepared by AEM Financial Solutions, LLC 

12



THIS PAGE IS LEFT 

BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

13



City of Mayer, Minnesota 
Long-term Plan 

Table of Contents 
 

  Page No.  
 
Introductory Section 
Compilation Disclosure 7 
Transmittal Letter 8 
 
Financial Section 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 12 
Schedule of Property Tax Levied and Tax Rates 14 
Schedule of Annual Fund Cash Balances 18 
Projected Outstanding Debt Schedule 20 
Capital Improvement Plan - Streets Fund 405 
 Schedule of Planned Capital Outlay 2019 to 2025 22 
 Schedule of Projected Revenue, Expenditures and Debt 2019 to 2025 24 
Capital Improvement Plan - Equipment Fund 435 
 Schedule of Planned Capital Outlay 2019 to 2025 28 
 Schedule of Projected Revenue, Expenditures and Debt 2019 to 2025 30  
Capital Improvement Plan - Fire Equipment Fund 210 
 Schedule of Planned Capital Outlay 2019 to 2025 32 
 Schedule of Projected Revenue, Expenditures and Debt 2019 to 2025 34  
Capital Improvement Plan - Parks Fund 220 
 Schedule of Planned Capital Outlay 2019 to 2025 36 
 Schedule of Projected Revenue, Expenditures and Debt 2019 to 2025 38 
Capital Improvement Plan - Facilities Fund 410 
 Schedule of Planned Capital Outlay 2019 to 2025 40
 Schedule of Projected Revenue, Expenditures and Debt 2019 to 2025 42 
Capital Improvement Plan - Water Fund 
 Schedule of Planned Capital Outlay 46 
 Schedule of Cash Flows - Rates Inflated 3% 48 
Capital Improvement Plan - Sewer Fund 
 Schedule of Cash Flows - Rates Inflated 3% 50 
Capital Improvement Plan - Storm Fund  
 Schedule of Cash Flows - Scenario 2 - Increase Spread Overs Several Period to Achieve Target 52 
Selected Graphical Data from Projections  54 
 
 
 

14



THIS PAGE IS LEFT 

BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

15



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INTRODUCTORY SECTION 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF MAYER, MINNESOTA 
LONG-TERM PLAN

16



THIS PAGE IS LEFT 

BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

17



COMPILATION DISCLOSURE 
 
 
 
Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Mayer 
413 Bluejay Avenue 
Mayer, Minnesota  55360 
 
We have compiled the accompanying forecasted long-term plan that includes property tax, tax rate, fund balance and 
debt projections based on input from the City Council and City staff.  This projection incorporates estimates through 
December 31, 2025.  This forecast was compiled in accordance with attestation standards established by the American 
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 
 
A compilation is limited to presenting in the form of a forecast information that is the representation of management and 
does not include evaluation of the support for the assumptions underlying the forecast. We have not examined the 
forecast and, accordingly, do not express an opinion or any other form of assurance on the accompanying statements or 
assumptions. Furthermore, there will usually be differences between the forecasted and actual results because events 
and circumstances frequently do not occur as expected, and those differences may be material. We have no responsibility 
to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report. 
 
 
 
AEM FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS, LLC 
 

18



Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Mayer 
413 Bluejay Avenue 
Mayer, Minnesota  55360 
 
Introduction 
 
As discussed in prior communications to the City Council, we have been preparing a long-term plan for the City that is 
intended to provide a comprehensive view of the City as of December 31, 2019 and six years from now. We have 
measured and projected operations, capital and debt for the City based on assumptions made by management. The City’s 
assumptions made are as follows: 
 
Assumptions 
 

• Normal operating expenses will increase by a three percent inflation rate. 
 

• Revenue growth is assumed at two percent. 
 

• Interest earnings on cash and investments is assumed at one percent. 
 

• Specific housing growth assumptions are included below as Exhibit A, general residential tax capacity growth is 
assumed at one percent. 
 

19



Exhibit A
City of Mayer
Growth Projections

Built in 2017 Built in 2018 Built in 2019 Built in 2020 Built in 2021 Built in 2022 Built in 2023
Residential Growth Unit Value Total Units 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
General 190,000$     47 -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                       -                    
 190,000       0 -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                       -                    
 190,000       0 -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                       -                    
 200,000       0 -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                       -                    
Other 250,000       187 30                 25                25                25                25                25                    25                 
Total Residential Units 234 30                 25                25                25                25                25                    25                 
Total Residential Market Value 7,500,000$   6,250,000$  6,250,000$  6,250,000$  6,250,000$  6,250,000$      6,250,000$   
Total Residential Tax Capacity 75,000$        62,500$       62,500$       62,500$       62,500$       62,500$           62,500$        

Commercial Growth Unit Value Total Units 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
New C/I 750,000$     0 -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                       -                    
New C/I 500,000       9 -                    1                  1                  2                  1                  1                      1                   
New C/I 1,000,000    1 1                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                       -                    
New C/I 600,000       1 -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                       -                    
Other -                   0 -                    -                   -                   -                   -                   -                       -                    
Total Commercial Units 11 1                   1                  1                  2                  1                  1                      1                   
Total Commercial Market Value 1,000,000$   500,000$     500,000$     1,000,000$  500,000$     500,000$         500,000$      
Total Commercial Tax Capacity 19,250$        9,250$         9,250$         19,250$       9,250$         9,250$             9,250$          

Total New Market Value 8,500,000$   6,750,000$  6,750,000$  7,250,000$  6,750,000$  6,750,000$      6,750,000$   
Total New Tax Capacity 94,250          71,750         71,750         81,750         71,750         71,750             71,750          
Less New Fiscal Disp. Contribution Tax Capacity (6,724)           (3,231)          (3,231)          (6,724)          (3,231)          (3,231)              (3,231)           
Annexations -                    -                   -                   -                   1                  -                       1                   
Total New Tax Capacity 87,526$        68,519$       68,519$       75,026$       68,520$       68,519$           68,520$        

 

• New projects have been identified in the capital plan and are to be expended in the respective capital outlay 
reserve. 

 
o The capital plan identifies the source of funds, either bonding, grants or reserves. 

 
• The general fund tax levy increase is calculated based on the amount needed to balance the general fund 

expenditures. 
 

• Where bond proceeds have been identified as a source of funding, the interest rate for financing is assumed at 2 - 
3 percent. 
 

• The City does not currently have any TIF districts. 
 

20



Key Highlights 
 

• The estimated General Fund reserve level at December 31, 2019 was 86%.  The recommended reserve level is 
35 - 50% of the general fund budget. On February 11, 2019 the City Council adopted a revised fund balance 
policy that states the General Fund unassigned fund balance will be maintained at 50% of the next year’s budget 
expenditures of the General Fund.  Any excess unassigned fund balance above 50% of the next year’s budget 
expenditures shall be allocated to the following funds or to any fund as determined by future needs, as 
determined by the City Council. 
 

o Fund 435 Capital Projects/Equipment  
 
o Fund 210 – Fire Equipment 

 
o Fund 410 Community Center  

 
o Fund 405 Street Improvement Fund  

 
If there is a shortage in the General Fund unassigned fund balance below 50% of the next year’s budgeted 
expenditures shall be allocated from the same funds as listed above. 

 
As of December 31, 2019, the unassigned General balance was $871 thousand.  Based on the fund balance 
policy, $500 thousand should be retained in reserves.   
 
At the end of each year, the City Council will want to review the General Fund unassigned balance and determine 
if a transfer to fund capital funds is warranted. 
 
The Fire department currently budgets for $100,000 of equipment in the General Fund each year.  Beginning in 
2020, the Fire department budgeted expenditures in the General fund have been reduced by $100,000.  
Offsetting this is a reduction in the General Fund property tax levy and an increase in property taxes levied for 
Fund 210 - Fire Equipment.  This will allow the Fire department to proactively save for future equipment.   
 

• The fund balances for fund 220 is estimated to have a deficit between 2023 - 2024. Temporary use of interfund 
loans from the General or another fund can be used to finance the deficits. 
 

• The City’s tax rate is estimated at 49.91% in 2020 will increase to an estimated 57.25% in 2024 if the City decided 
to fund Streets and facilities at the planned expenditure level. The tax rate will drop to 53% in 2025.  

 
• The City’s existing debt will decrease from $4,635,000 as of December 31, 2019 to $222,000 in  2024 but it is 

anticipated that a bond issue will be needed in the following funds in the following years.  
 

2021 2022 2023 2024

Streets 800,000$       -$                   -$                   -$                   
Streets -                     -                     -                     2,300,000      
Facilities 3,195,000      -                     -                     -                     
Water 727,000         -                     -                     -                     
Sewer -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total 4,722,000$    -$                   -$                   2,300,000$    

 
• The City’s total cash balances are projected to decrease from $5,988,469  as of December 31, 2019 to 

$6,529,853 as of December 31, 2025. The balance overall is still healthy considering debt and expenditures.  
 

• The City’s total debt per capita will increase from $2,207 to $2,714 over the life of this Plan. 
 

• The future taxes per capita would be $705 at 2025 compared with projected taxes per capita of 
$582 in 2020. 

21



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FINANCIAL SECTION 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF MAYER, MINNESOTA 
LONG-TERM PLAN 

22



City of Mayer, Minnesota
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

Summary Budget - General Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (Actual) and 2020 to 2025 (Projected)

2019 2020 2021
Projected Projected Projected
Amounts Amounts Amounts

Revenue
Taxes 644,560$       427,950$       446,360$       
Licenses and permits 111,264         96,900           98,838           
Intergovernmental revenues 336,875         373,375         380,843         
Charges for services 73,723           68,178           69,542           
Fines and forfeitures 6,979             6,979             7,119             
Special assessments (15)                 -                     -                     
Interest earnings 19,843           13,162           13,425           
Miscellaneous revenue 76,223           14,719           15,013           
Transfers in -                     -                     -                     

Total Revenues 1,269,452      1,001,263      1,031,139      

Expenditures
General government 353,419         463,770         477,683         
Public safety 225,903         263,174         271,069         
Public works 292,949         192,685         198,466         
Sanitation & recycling 3,228             3,185             3,281             
Culture & recreation 72,086           68,499           70,554           
Economic development -                     4,550             4,687             
Capital outlay 208,286         -                     -                     
Debt service 5,402             5,400             5,400             

Total Expenditures 1,161,273      1,001,263      1,031,139      

Net Revenue Over (Under) Expense 108,179$       -$                   -$                   
86% 100% 97%

23



2022 2023 2024 2025
Projected Projected Projected Projected
Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts

465,598$       485,531$       506,181$       527,571$       
100,815         102,831         104,888         106,985         
388,459         396,229         404,153         412,236         
70,932           72,351           73,798           75,274           
7,261             7,406             7,554             7,705             

-                     -                     -                     1                    
13,694           13,968           14,247           14,532           
15,314           15,620           15,932           16,251           

-                     -                     -                     -                     
1,062,073      1,093,935      1,126,753      1,160,556      

492,014         506,774         521,977         537,637         
279,201         287,577         296,205         305,091         
204,420         210,552         216,869         223,375         

3,379             3,480             3,585             3,692             
72,671           74,851           77,096           79,409           
4,827             4,972             5,121             5,275             

-                     -                     -                     -                     
5,562             5,729             5,901             6,078             

1,062,073      1,093,935      1,126,753      1,160,556      

-$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
94% 91% 88% 0%

24



City of Mayer, Minnesota
Schedule of Property Tax Levied and Tax Rates

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (Actual) and 2020 to 2025 (Projected)

2019 2020
Actual Projected

Amounts Amounts
Property Taxes Levied for General Purposes

101 General Fund 644,560$       427,950$       

Property Taxes Levied for Debt Service

101 Fire Station 3,320             21,749           
325 GO Improvement and Utility Refunding Bonds 2014A 153,079         150,000         
350 GO Bonds 2015A 68,579           68,440           
640 GO Water and Sewer Refunding Bonds 2007A 253,000         254,500         

Subtotal 477,978         494,689         

Property Tax Levied for Capital Projects (Re-appropriated from General Fund)

220 Streets * y -                     112,500         
400/405 Equipment y -                     100,000         

410 Facilities y -                     -                     
435 Parks y -                     100,000         
220 Potential levies for new debt service - Streets y -                     -                     

400/405 Potential levies for new debt service - Equipment y -                     -                     
410 Potential levies for new debt service - Facilities y -                     -                     
435 Potential levies for new debt service - Parks y -                     -                     

Subtotal -                     312,500         

Total Tax Levies 1,122,538$    1,235,139$    
Percent Increase 13% 10%

Tax Capacity

Personal and Real Estate - Carver County 1,930,245$    2,038,182$    
Assumed new growth -                     68,519           
Less: Contribution to fiscal disparities 84,904           84,904           
Less: Tax Increment -                     -                     

Tax capacity used for local rate 1,845,341      2,021,797      
Add: Distribution from fiscal disparities 208,899         226,107         

Adjusted Net Tax Capacity 2,054,240$    2,247,904$    

 * Streets levy includes reapproiation from General Fund $100,000 and $100,000 
for projects (2021) 

25



2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected
Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts

446,360$       465,598$       485,531$       506,181$       527,571$       

-                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
155,000         155,000         155,000         -                     -                     
49,289           48,347           47,262           51,366           3,419             

234,500         214,500         194,500         174,500         154,500         
438,789         417,847         396,762         225,866         157,919         

100,000         100,000         100,000         100,000         100,001         
100,000         100,000         100,000         100,000         100,001         

-                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
100,000         100,000         100,000         100,000         100,000         
98,700           98,700           98,700           382,200         382,200         

-                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
-                     75,487           75,487           201,487         204,847         
-                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

398,700         474,187         474,187         883,687         887,049         

1,283,848$    1,357,632$    1,356,480$    1,615,734$    1,572,539$    
4% 6% 0% 19% -3%

2,068,755$    2,099,786$    2,131,283$    2,163,252$    2,195,701$    
137,038         212,064         280,584         349,103         417,623         
84,904           84,904           84,904           84,904           84,904           

-                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

2,120,889      2,226,946      2,326,963      2,427,451      2,528,420      
226,107         226,107         226,107         226,107         226,107         

2,346,996$    2,453,053$    2,553,070$    2,653,558$    2,754,527$    

26



City of Mayer, Minnesota
Schedule of Property Taxes Levied and Tax Rates (Continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (Actual) and 2020 to 2025 (Projected)

2019 2020
Projected Projected
Amounts Amounts

Tax Rates

General 28.43% 17.29%
Scheduled debt levies 21.08% 19.99%
Proposed levies to fund CIP 0.00% 12.63%

Total Direct Tax Rate (factors Fiscal Disparities
   not reflected in tax capacity) 49.51% 49.91%

Population 2,100             2,121             

Taxes per Capita 534.54$         582.34$         

Median Home Value 230,809$       242,350$       
Median Home Taxes (from city) $1,143 $1,210
% change from prior year $'s 33% 6%

Tax Levy ($)

General 644,560$       427,950$       
Scheduled debt levies 477,978         494,689         
Proposed levies to fund CIP -                     312,500         

Tax Levy (%)

General 57% 35%
Scheduled debt levies 43% 40%
Proposed levies to fund CIP 0% 25%

27



2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected
Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts

17.34% 17.43% 17.39% 17.93% 17.87%
17.05% 15.64% 14.21% 8.00% 5.35%
15.49% 17.75% 16.98% 31.31% 30.04%

49.87% 50.81% 48.58% 57.25% 53.25%

2,142             2,164             2,185             2,207             2,229             

599.31$         627.48$         620.74$         732.05$         705.43$         

245,985$       249,675$       253,420$       257,221$       261,080$       
$1,227 $1,269 $1,231 $1,472 $1,390

1% 3% -3% 20% -6%

446,360$       465,598$       485,531$       506,181$       527,571$       
438,789         417,847         396,762         225,866         157,919         
398,700         474,187         474,187         883,687         887,049         

35% 34% 36% 31% 34%
34% 31% 29% 14% 10%
31% 35% 35% 55% 56%

28



City of Mayer, Minnesota
Schedule of Annual Fund Cash Balances

December 31, 2019 (Actual) and 2020 to 2025 (Projected)

2019 2020
Projected Projected
Amounts Amounts

Government-type
General Operations

101 General 997,102$       997,102$       

Special Revenue
212 Fire department contributions 25,338           25,718           
222 Old schoolhouse -                     -                     
225 Economic development authority 20,161           20,463           

Subtotal 45,499           46,181           

Debt Service
325 GO Improvement/Utility Revenue Bonds 2014A 300,628         228,937         
350 GO Bonds, Series 2015A 162,072         188,635         

Subtotal 462,700         417,572         

Capital Projects
210 Fire truck 156,189         233,532         
220 Parks capital fund 365,186         250,664         
405 Streets capital fund 115,859         (59,903)          
410 Facilities capital fund 22,022           (17,648)          
435 Equipment capital fund 711,252         651,688         

Subtotal 1,370,508      1,058,333      

Total - Governmental-type Funds 2,875,809$    2,519,188$    

Business-type
Enterprise Funds

620 Water 1,103,465$    767,234$       
640 Sewer 1,892,029      1,752,835      
650 Storm Water 62,319           (32,338)          

Total - Business-type Funds 3,057,813$    2,487,731$    

Agency-type
Agency

800 Developer Escows 54,847$         55,670$         

Total - Agency-type Funds 54,847$         55,670$         

Grand Total - City 5,988,469$    5,062,589$    

29



2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected
Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts

997,102$       997,102$       997,102$       997,102$       997,102$       

26,104           26,495           26,893           27,296           27,706           
-                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

20,770           21,082           21,398           21,719           22,045           
46,874           47,577           48,291           49,015           49,751           

159,421         90,313           16,917           -                     -                     
196,659         199,324         201,671         209,096         164,687         
356,080         289,637         218,589         209,096         164,687         

23,891           114,250         131,320         233,645         277,507         
121,424         158,864         (138,247)        (14,901)          108,913         
549,898         389,847         871,176         -                     -                     
59,160           23,641           27,590           37,597           47,918           

776,974         689,140         814,988         927,724         982,151         
1,531,347      1,375,741      1,706,825      1,184,066      1,416,490      

2,931,403$    2,710,057$    2,970,807$    2,439,279$    2,628,029$    

874,152$       985,623$       1,139,590$    1,331,439$    1,659,056$    
1,534,134      1,465,590      1,227,680      1,511,038      1,922,700      

(11,874)          33,872           116,634         209,556         313,164         

2,396,412$    2,485,085$    2,483,904$    3,052,033$    3,894,920$    

56,505$         57,352$         58,213$         59,086$         59,972$         

56,505$         57,352$         58,213$         59,086$         59,972$         

5,384,319$    5,252,495$    5,512,923$    5,550,398$    6,582,921$    

30



City of Mayer, Minnesota
Projected Outstanding Debt Schedule

December 31, 2019 (Actual) and 2020 to 2025 (Projected)

2019 2020
Actual Projected

Fund Issue Amounts Amounts
Existing Debt

Government-type
Lease Purchase Agreements

101 Fire Station Lease and Purchase Option Agreement 2009 -$                   -$                   

G.O. Improvement Bonds

325 GO Improvement and Utility Refunding Bonds 2014A 875,000         665,000         
350 GO Bonds 2015A - Improvements 305,000         265,000         
350 GO Bonds 2015A - Equipment Certificates 245,000         205,000         

Total G.O. Improvement Bonds 1,425,000      1,135,000      

Business-type
G.O. Revenue Bonds

620 Minnesota Public Facilities Authority Loan 1998 25,000           -                     
640 Minnesota Public Facilities Authority Loan 1998 44,000           -                     
620 Minnesota Public Facilities Authority Loan 2005 1,031,000      892,000         
620 GO Water and Sewer Refunding Bonds 2007A 531,900         406,350         
620 GO Bonds 2015A 140,000         120,000         
640 GO Water and Sewer Refunding Bonds 2007A 1,438,100      1,098,650      

Total G.O. Revenue Bonds 3,210,000      2,517,000      

Total Debt 4,635,000      3,652,000      

Government-type
GO - Governmental type

Potential new debt to balance projects - streets -                     -                     
Potential new debt to balance projects - equipment -                     -                     
Potential new debt to balance projects - facilities -                     -                     
Potential new debt to balance projects - parks -                     -                     
Total Governmental -                     -                     

GO - Business type
Potential new debt to balance projects - Water 727,000         
Potential new debt to balance projects - Sewer -                     
Total Business type -                     727,000         
Total Potential New Debt -                     727,000         

Government-type 1,425,000      1,135,000      
Business-type 3,210,000      3,244,000      

Total Existing and Potential New Debt 4,635,000$    4,379,000$    

Population 2100 2121
Debt Per Capita 2,207$           2,065$           

31



2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected
Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts

-$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   

450,000         230,000         -                     -                     -                     
225,000         180,000         135,000         90,000           45,000           
165,000         125,000         85,000           45,000           -                     
840,000         535,000         220,000         135,000         45,000           

-                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
-                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

751,000         607,000         460,000         310,000         157,000         
270,000         179,550         91,800           -                     -                     
100,000         80,000           60,000           40,000           20,000           
730,000         485,450         248,200         -                     -                     

1,851,000      1,352,000      860,000         350,000         177,000         

2,691,000      1,887,000      1,080,000      485,000         222,000         

730,000         657,900         583,637         2,606,146      2,320,330      
-                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

3,035,250      2,875,500      2,715,750      2,556,000      2,396,250      
-                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

3,765,250      3,533,400      3,299,387      5,162,146      4,716,580      

660,540         592,751         523,606         453,078         381,140         
-                     -                     913,000         823,390         731,092         

660,540         592,751         1,436,606      1,276,468      1,112,232      
4,425,790      4,126,151      4,735,993      6,438,614      5,828,812      

4,605,250      4,068,400      3,519,387      5,297,146      4,761,580      
2,511,540      1,944,751      2,296,606      1,626,468      1,289,232      

7,116,790$    6,013,151$    5,815,993$    6,923,614$    6,050,812$    

2142 2164 2185 2207 2229
3,322$           2,779$           2,661$           3,137$           2,714$           

32



City of Mayer, Minnesota
Capital Improvement Plan - Streets Fund 405

Schedule of Planned Capital Outlay 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (Actual) and 2020 to 2025 (Projected)

2019
Year to Projected

Department Replace Item Cost Amounts

Public works 2020 Coldwater Crossing, Old School House Rd, Riverbend Tr 290,000$       -$                   
Public works 2021 5th Street NE (30% Assessed to property owners) 294,000         -                    
Public works 2022 Shimmcor St, West Ridge Rd 273,000         -                    
Public works 2023 Coldwater Crossing, Big Oak Ln, Deerwoods, Grey Owl, Meadow Ln, Riverbend 440,000         -                    
Public works 2024 Hidden Cr, Cardinal, Apple, Foxtail, Evergreen, Drake, Birch, Walnut, Meadow 536,000         -                    
Public works 2024 Hidden Cr, Hidden Tr, Pinecone, Coldwater Crossing 512,000         -                    
Public works 2025 62nd, Fieldstone, Harvest, Cinnamon, Prairie, Sundance 700,000         -                    

-$                   

33



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected
Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts

290,000$       -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
-                    294,000         -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    273,000         -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    440,000         -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    536,000         -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    512,000         -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    700,000         

290,000$       294,000$       273,000$       440,000$       1,048,000$    700,000$       

34



City of Mayer, Minnesota
Capital Improvement Plan - Streets Fund 405

Schedule of Projected Revenue, Expenditures and Debt
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (Actual) and 2020 to 2025 (Projected)

2019
Revenues

Property taxes -$                   
Interest on investments 2,710             
Miscellaneous -                    

Total Revenues 2,710             

Expenditures
Capital outlay

Public works -                    
Total Expenditures -                    

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures 2,710             

Other Financing Sources
Bond Proceeds -                    

Net Change in Fund Balances 2,710             

Fund Balances January 1 113,149         

Fund Balances, December 31 115,859$       

35



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

112,500$       100,000$       100,000$       100,000$       100,000$       100,001$       
1,738             (899)               8,178             5,706             691                20,982           

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    1                    
114,238         99,101           108,178         105,706         100,691         120,984         

290,000         294,000         273,000         440,000         1,048,000      700,000         
290,000         294,000         273,000         440,000         1,048,000      700,000         

(175,762)        (194,899)        (164,822)        (334,294)        (947,309)        (579,016)        

-                    800,000         -                    -                    2,300,000      -                    

(175,762)        605,101         (164,822)        (334,294)        1,352,691      (579,016)        

115,859         (59,903)          545,198         380,376         46,082           1,398,773      

(59,903)$        545,198$       380,376$       46,082$         1,398,773$    819,757$       

Capital Project Fund Projected Activity

36



City of Mayer, Minnesota
Capital Improvement Plan - Streets Fund 405

Schedule of Projected Revenue, Expenditures and Debt (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (Actual) and 2020 to 2025 (Projected)

2019

Beginning Balance -$                   

Revenue
Tax levy -                    
Interest -                    
Transfers in -                    

Total Revenue -                    

Expenditures
Principle -                    
Interest -                    

Total Expenditures -                    

Ending Balance -$                   

37



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

-$                   -$                   4,700$           9,471$           14,313$         32,727$         

-                    98,700           98,700           98,700           382,200         382,200         
-                    -                    71                  142                215                491                
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    1                    
-                    98,700           98,771           98,842           382,415         382,692         

-                    70,000           72,100           74,263           277,491         285,816         
-                    24,000           21,900           19,737           86,509           78,184           
-                    94,000           94,000           94,000           364,000         364,000         

-$                   4,700$           9,471$           14,313$         32,727$         51,419$         

Debt Service Fund Related Activity

38



City of Mayer, Minnesota
Capital Improvement Plan - Equipment Fund 435

Schedule of Planned Capital Outlay
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (Actual) and 2020 to 2025 (Projected)

2019
Year to Projected

Department Replace Item Cost Amounts

Public Works 2020 2020 Mack GR42F Snow Plow truck 111,744$       -$                   
Public Works 2022 Loader/Backhoe Tractor 200,000         -                    
Public Works 2020 Replace 72" Hustler 6,000             -                    
Public Works 2020 Replace Plow 8,000             -                    
Public Works 2020 Replace 4520 John Deere Tractor 40,000           -                    
Public Works 2020 Replace Kubota RTV 20,000           -                    
Public Works 2022 Replace S650 Bobcat 15,000           -                    
Public Works 2024 Replace Toolcat 15,000           -                    
Public Works 2025 Replace F-550 75,000           -                    
Public Works 2029 1 Ton Utility Pick-up - Replace F-350 40,000           -                    

-$               

39



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected
Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts

111,744$       -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
-                    -                    200,000         -                    -                    -                    

6,000             -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
8,000             -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

40,000           -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
20,000           -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

-                    -                    15,000           -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    15,000           -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    75,000           
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

185,744$       -$               215,000$       -$               15,000$         75,000$         

40



City of Mayer, Minnesota
Capital Improvement Plan - Equipment Fund 435

Schedule of Projected Revenue, Expenditures and Debt 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (Actual) and 2020 to 2025 (Projected)

2019
Revenues

Property taxes -$                   
Interest on investments 19,781           
Special assessments 15,511           
Miscellaneous (township billing contract) -                    

Total Revenues 35,292           

Expenditures
Capital outlay

Equipment 175,168         
Total Expenditures 175,168         

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures (139,876)        

Other Financing Sources
Transfers In
     Fire donation -                    
     Bond proceeds -                    

General fund -                    
Bond Proceeds -                    
Intergovernmental -                    
Sale of Fixed Asset -                    
Transfers In -                    
Transfers Out -                    

Total Other Financing Sources -                    

Net Change in Fund Balances (139,876)        

Fund Balances January 1 851,128         

Fund Balances, December 31 711,252$       

41



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

100,000$       100,000$       100,000$       100,000$       100,000$       100,001$       
10,669           9,775             11,655           10,337           12,225           13,916           
15,511           15,511           15,511           15,511           15,511           15,511           

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
126,180         125,286         127,166         125,848         127,736         129,428         

185,744         -                    215,000         -                    15,000           75,000           
185,744         -                    215,000         -                    15,000           75,000           

(59,564)          125,286         (87,834)          125,848         112,736         54,428           

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

(59,564)          125,286         (87,834)          125,848         112,736         54,428           

711,252         651,688         776,974         689,140         814,988         927,724         

651,688$       776,974$       689,140$       814,988$       927,724$       982,151$       

Capital Project Fund Projected Activity

42



2019
Year to Projected

Department Replace Item Cost Amounts

Fire 2019 Turn Out Gear 10,000$         10,000$         
Fire 2019 Air packs 15,000           15,000           
Fire 2019 Replace Radios 9,000             9,000             
Fire 2019 Replace hose, tools, pagers, extrication tools & misc 10,000           10,000           
Fire 2020 Air packs / Turn out gear 25,000           -                    
Fire 2021 Air packs / Turn out gear 25,000           -                    
Fire 2022 Air packs / Turn out gear 25,000           -                    
Fire 2023 Air packs / Turn out gear 25,000           -                    
Fire 2021 Replace\Tanker 1989 300,000         -                    
Fire 2023 Small Rescue 75,000           -                    

44,000$         

City of Mayer, Minnesota
Capital Improvement Plan - Fire Equipment 210

Schedule of Planned Capital Outlay
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (Actual) and 2020 to 2025 (Projected)

43



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected
Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts

-$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

25,000           -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    25,000           -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    25,000           -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    25,000           -                    -                    
-                    300,000         -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    75,000           -                    -                    

25,000$         325,000$       25,000$         100,000$       15,000$         75,000$         

44



2019
Revenues

Property taxes -$                   
Interest on investments 3,654             
Special assessments -                    
Miscellaneous (township reimbursement on tanker) -                    

Total Revenues 3,654             

Expenditures
Capital outlay

Equipment -                    
Total Expenditures -                    

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures 3,654             

Other Financing Sources
Transfers In
     Fire donation -                    
     Bond proceeds -                    

General fund -                    
Bond Proceeds -                    
Intergovernmental -                    
Sale of Fixed Asset -                    
Transfers In -                    
Transfers Out -                    

Total Other Financing Sources -                    

Net Change in Fund Balances 3,654             

Fund Balances January 1 152,535         

Fund Balances, December 31 156,189$       

Capital Improvement Plan - Fire Equipment 210
City of Mayer, Minnesota

Schedule of Projected Revenue, Expenditures and Debt 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (Actual) and 2020 to 2025 (Projected)

45



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

100,000$       100,000$       100,000$       100,000$       100,000$       100,001$       
2,343             -                    -                    1,714             1,970             3,505             

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    15,359           15,359           15,356           15,356           15,356           

102,343         115,359         115,359         117,070         117,326         118,862         

25,000           325,000         25,000           100,000         15,000           75,000           
25,000           325,000         25,000           100,000         15,000           75,000           

77,343           (209,641)        90,359           17,070           102,326         43,862           

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

77,343           (209,641)        90,359           17,070           102,326         43,862           

156,189         233,532         23,891           114,250         131,320         233,645         

233,532$       23,891$         114,250$       131,320$       233,645$       277,507$       

Capital Project Fund Projected Activity

46



City of Mayer, Minnesota
Capital Improvement Plan - Parks Fund 220

Schedule of Planned Capital Outlay 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (Actual) and 2020 to 2025 (Projected)

2019
Year to Projected

Department Year Replace Item Cost Amounts

Parks 2020 Old School House Park Trail 50,000$         -$                   
Parks 2039 West Ridge Parking Lot 70,000           -                    
Parks 2021 Skate Park Equipment 25,000           -                    
Parks 2020 Archery Range 10,000           -                    
Parks 2020 Discovery Park Playground Equipment 100,000         -                    
Parks 2021 Old School House Bathrooms 200,000         -                    
Parks 2021 Gazebo - Meadow Park 30,000           -                    
Parks 2023 Splash Pad - OSH Park 215,000         -                    
Parks 2022 Meadow Park Trail Reconstruction 60,000           -                    
Parks 2020 Discovery Park - Gazebo 30,000           -                    
Parks 2020 Discovery Park - Basketball Court 30,000           -                    
Parks 2022 Dog Park Fencing - Meadow Park 25,000           -                    
Parks 2023 Parking Lot - Meadow Park 75,000           -                    
Parks 2023 Additional Parking - OSH Park 60,000           -                    
Parks 2023 Trail Addition - West Ridge Park 70,000           -                    

-$                   

47



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected
Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts

50,000$         -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    25,000           -                    -                    -                    -                    

10,000           -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
100,000         -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

-                    200,000         -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    30,000           -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    215,000         -                    -                    
-                    -                    60,000           -                    -                    -                    

30,000           -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
30,000           -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

-                    -                    25,000           -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    75,000           -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    60,000           -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    70,000           -                    -                    

220,000$       255,000$       85,000$         420,000$       -$                   -$                   

48



City of Mayer, Minnesota
Capital Improvement Plan - Parks Fund 220

Schedule of Projected Revenue, Expenditures and Debt
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (Actual) and 2020 to 2025 (Projected)

2019
Revenues

Property taxes
Interest on investments 8,542             
Donations -                    
Miscellaneous (Park Dedication Fees) 21,168           

Total Revenues 29,710           

Expenditures
Capital outlay

Facilities -                    
Total Expenditures -                    

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
  Over (Under) Expenditures 29,710           

Other Financing Sources
Transfers In
     General -                    
Bond Proceeds -                    
Sale of Fixed Asset -                    
Transfers Out -                    

Total Other Financing Sources -                    

Net Change in Fund Balances 29,710           

Fund Balances January 1 335,476         

Fund Balances, December 31 365,186$       

49



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

100,000$       100,000$       100,000$       100,000$       100,000$       100,000$       
5,478             3,760             -                    -                    -                    -                    

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    22,000           22,440           22,889           23,347           23,814           

105,478         125,760         122,440         122,889         123,347         123,814         

220,000         255,000         85,000           420,000         -                    -                    
220,000         255,000         85,000           420,000         -                    -                    

(114,522)        (129,240)        37,440           (297,111)        123,347         123,814         

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

(114,522)        (129,240)        37,440           (297,111)        123,347         123,814         

365,186         250,664         121,424         158,864         (138,247)        (14,901)          

250,664$       121,424$       158,864$       (138,247)$      (14,901)$        108,913$       

Capital Project Fund Projected Activity

50



City of Mayer, Minnesota
Capital Improvement Plan - Facilities Fund 410

Schedule of Planned Capital Outlay 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (Actual) and 2020 to 2025 (Projected)

2019
Year to Projected

Department Replace Item Cost Amounts

Fire 2021 Fire Station 3,050,000$    -$                   
Parks 2020 Community Center 25,000           -                    
Parks 2020 Community Center - carpet 15,000           -                    
Parks 2021 Community Center - cabinets 20,000           -                    
Parks 2022 Community Center - flooring 40,000           -                    

-$                   

51



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected
Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts Amounts

-$                   3,050,000$    -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
25,000           -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
15,000           -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

-                    20,000           -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    40,000           -                    -                    -                    

40,000$         3,070,000$    40,000$         -$                   -$                   -$               

52



2019
Revenues

Property taxes -$                   
Interest on investments 569                
Miscellaneous -                    

Total Revenues 569                

Expenditures
Capital outlay

Facilities 2,985             
Total Expenditures 2,985             

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (2,416)            

Other Financing Sources
Transfers In
     General Fund -                    
Loan Proceeds -                    
Bond Proceeds -                    
Intergovernmental -                    
Sale of Fixed Asset -                    
Loan Principal -                    
Loan Interest -                    
Transfers Out -                    

Total Other Financing Sources -                    

Net Change in Fund Balances (2,416)            

Fund Balances January 1 24,438           

Fund Balances, December 31 22,022$         

City of Mayer, Minnesota
Capital Improvement Plan - Facilities Fund 410

Schedule of Projected Revenue, Expenditures and Debt
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (Actual) and 2020 to 2025 (Projected)

53



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

-$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   -$                   
330                (265)               887                301                305                310                

-                    -                    -                    -                    1                    
330                (265)               887                301                305                311                

40,000           3,070,000      40,000           -                    -                    -                    
40,000           3,070,000      40,000           -                    -                    -                    

(39,670)          (3,070,265)     (39,113)          301                305                311                

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    3,195,000      -                    -                    -                    1                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

-                    (47,928)          -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    3,147,072      -                    -                    -                    1                    

(39,670)          76,807           (39,113)          301                305                312                

22,022           (17,648)          59,160           20,047           20,348           20,653           

(17,648)$        59,160$         20,047$         20,348$         20,653$         20,965$         

Capital Project Fund Projected Activity

54



2019

Beginning Balance -$                   

Revenue
Tax levy -                    
Interest -                    
Transfers in -                    

Total Revenue -                    

Expenditures
Principle -                    
Interest -                    

Total Expenditures -                    

Ending Balance -$                   

Capital Improvement Plan - Facilities Fund 410
Schedule of Projected Revenue, Expenditures and Debt (Continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (Actual) and 2020 to 2025 (Projected)

City of Mayer, Minnesota

55



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

-$                   -$                   -$                   3,594$           7,242$           16,945$         

-                    -                    75,487           75,487           201,487         204,847         
-                    -                    -                    54                  109                254                
-                    47,928           -                    -                    -                    1                    
-                    47,928           75,487           75,541           201,596         205,102         

-                    120,000         125,000         
-                    47,928           71,893           71,893           71,893           70,093           
-                    47,928           71,893           71,893           191,893         195,093         

-$                   -$                   3,594$           7,242$           16,945$         26,954$         

Debt Service Fund Related Activity

56



City of Mayer, Minnesota
Capital Improvement Plan - Water Fund

Schedule of Planned Capital Outlay 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (Actual) and 2020 to 2025 (Projected)

Year to
Department Year Replace Item Cost 2019

Water 2020 Engineering related to projects 120,000$         -$                     
Water 2020 Engineering related to water tower rehab 70,000             -                       
Water 2020 WTP and Well Improvements (table 1) 300,000           -                       
Water 2020 Well Improvements (table 2) 360,000         -                       
Water 2020 Water Tower Rehabilitation (table 3) 340,000         -                       

-$                     

57



2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

120,000$         -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
70,000             -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

300,000           -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
360,000           -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
340,000           -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

1,190,000$      -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     

58



City of Mayer, Minnesota
Water Fund

Schedule of Cash Flows - Rates Inflated 3%
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (Actual) and 2020 to 2025 (Projected)

Actual
2019

Projected Rate Increase 3%

Usage Rates 3%
Fixed 3%
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Overall % Increase 6.26%
Receipts from Customers and Users 394,907$       

Other operating receipts 50,869           
Payments to suppliers, contractors and other governments (137,161)        
Payments to employees (68,594)          
Net Cash from Operating Activities 240,021         

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Special assessments received 1,978             
Transfers in -                    
Transfers out -                    

Net Cash from Noncapital Financing Activities 1,978             

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition of capital assets -                    
Intergovernmental receipts -                    
Property taxes received -                    
Connection fees collected 97,450           
Developer area charges -                    
Proceeds of bonds issued, net of issuance costs -                    
Proceeds of refunding bonds issued -                    
Payment on refunding bonds -                    
Principal paid on debt issued after 2019
Interest paid on debt issued after 2019
Principal paid on long-term debt (314,750)        
Interest paid on long-term debt (49,125)          

Net Cash from Capital and Related Financing Activities (266,425)        

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest received on Investments 26,720           

Net Increase (Decrease)
in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,294             

Cash and Cash Equivalents, January 1 1,101,171      

Cash and Cash Equivalents, December 31 1,103,465$    

Target Cash Reserve 574,023$       

Cash in Excess of Reserve 529,442$       

59



Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%
3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

6.16% 6.07% 5.98% 5.89% 5.81% 5.74%
419,230$       444,657$       471,233$       499,003$       528,015$       558,319$       
54,002           57,277           60,701           64,278           68,015           71,918           

(141,276)        (141,276)        (141,276)        (141,276)        (141,276)        (141,276)        
(69,280)          (69,280)          (69,280)          (69,280)          (69,280)          (69,280)          
262,677         291,379         321,378         352,725         385,474         419,681         

-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

(1,190,000)     -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

115,875         123,064         126,778         130,491         134,469         138,447         
14,959           15,407           15,870           16,346           16,836           17,341           

800,000         -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
-                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

(67,789)          (69,145)          (70,528)          (71,938)          
(13,211)          (11,855)          (10,472)          (9,062)            

(309,550)        (297,350)        (254,450)        (254,750)        (261,800)        (173,000)        
(41,226)          (33,255)          (25,846)          (19,701)          (13,526)          (7,167)            

(609,943)        (192,133)        (218,648)        (208,615)        (205,021)        (105,378)        

11,035           7,672             8,742             9,856             11,396           13,314           

(336,231)        106,919         111,471         153,966         191,849         327,617         

1,103,465      767,234         874,152         985,623         1,139,590      1,331,439      

767,234$       874,152$       985,623$       1,139,590$    1,331,439$    1,659,056$    

556,252$       505,943$       500,099$       500,973$       405,814$       406,147$       

210,982$       368,209$       485,525$       638,617$       925,625$       1,252,909$    

RATE STUDY PROJECTIONS

60



City of Mayer, Minnesota
Capital Improvement Plan - Sewer Fund

Schedule of Cash Flows - Rates Inflated 3%
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (Actual) and 2020 to 2025 (Projected)

  
Actual
2019

Projected Rate Increase 3%

Usage Rates 3%
Fixed 3%
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Overall % Increase 7.30%
Receipts from Customers and Users 484,485$       

Other operating receipts 103                
Payments to suppliers, contractors and other governments (296,294)        
Payments to employees (68,174)          
Net Cash from Operating Activities 120,120         

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Special assessments received 1,957             

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition of capital assets (116,153)        
Intergovernmental receipts -                     
Property taxes received** 254,462         
Connection fees collected 101,309         
Developer area charges -                     
Proceeds of bonds issued, net of issuance costs -                     
Principal paid on debt issued after 2019
Interest paid on debt issued after 2019
Principal paid on long-term debt - existing (353,250)        
Interest paid on long-term debt - existing (51,584)          
Net Cash from Capital and Related Financing Activities (165,216)        

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest received on Investments 45,893           

Net Increase (Decrease)
in Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,754             

Cash and Cash Equivalents, January 1 1,889,275      

Cash and Cash Equivalents, December 31 1,892,029$    

Target Cash Reserve 1,138,773$    

Cash in Excess of Reserve 753,256$       

61



RATE STUDY PROJECTIONS
Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%
3% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

7.13% 6.97% 6.82% 6.69% 6.56% 6.44%
519,022$       560,996$       599,268$       639,332$       681,260$       725,128$       

110                7,903             8,140             8,384             8,635             8,894             
(305,183)        (305,183)        (305,183)        (305,183)        (305,183)        (305,183)        
(70,219)          (70,219)          (70,219)          (70,219)          (70,219)          (70,219)          
143,730         193,497         232,006         272,314         314,493         358,621         

-                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

(87,000)          (437,000)        (412,000)        (3,000,000)     -                     -                     
3,876             4,070             4,273             1,504,487      4,711             4,947             

254,500         234,500         214,500         194,500         174,500         
115,875         123,064         126,778         130,491         134,469         138,447         
14,959           15,407           15,870           16,346           16,836           17,341           

-                     -                     -                     1,000,000      -                     -                     
-                     -                     (87,000)          (89,610)          (92,298)          
-                     -                     (30,000)          (27,390)          (24,702)          

(383,450)        (368,650)        (244,550)        (237,250)        (248,200)        -                     
(44,274)          (32,960)          (21,900)          (14,564)          (7,446)            -                     

(125,514)        (461,568)        (317,030)        (522,990)        (42,130)          43,735           

17,174           17,844           16,480           12,767           10,994           9,306             

35,390           (250,228)        (68,544)          (237,910)        283,357         411,662         

1,717,444      1,784,362      1,534,134      1,465,590      1,227,680      1,511,038      

1,752,835$    1,534,134$    1,465,590$    1,227,680$    1,511,038$    1,922,700$    

1,118,126$    982,966$       968,330$       972,162$       716,516$       716,516$       

634,709$       551,168$       497,260$       255,518$       794,521$       1,206,184$    

62



City of Mayer, Minnesota
Capital Improvement Plan - Storm Fund

Schedule of Cash Flows - Scenario 2 - Increase Spread Over Several Periods to Achieve Target
For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (Actual) and 2020 to 2025 (Projected)

  
Actual
2019

Projected Rate Increase 100%

Fixed 100%
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Overall % Increase 107.70%
Receipts from Customers and Users 40,810$         

Other operating receipts -                     
Payments to suppliers, contractors and other governments (16,747)          
Payments to employees -                     
Net Cash from Operating Activities 24,063           

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition of capital assets -                     
Intergovernmental receipts 20,000           
Developer area charges
Net Cash from Capital and Related Financing Activities 20,000           

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest received on Investments 780                

Net Increase (Decrease)
in Cash and Cash Equivalents 44,843           

Cash and Cash Equivalents, January 1 17,476           

Cash and Cash Equivalents, December 31 62,319$         

Target Cash Reserve 52,974$         

Cash in Excess of Reserve 9,346$           

63



RATE STUDY PROJECTIONS
Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

40% 25% 25% 25% 3% 3%

40% 25% 25% 25% 3% 3%

45.19% 29.47% 29.31% 29.17% 6.33% 6.22%
59,252$         76,713$         99,201$         128,139$       136,245$       144,721$       

367                378                389                401                413                425                
(17,249)          (17,249)          (17,249)          (17,249)          (17,249)          (17,249)          

-                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
42,369           59,841           82,341           111,290         119,408         127,897         

(73,000)          (73,000)          (73,000)          (73,000)          (73,000)          (73,000)          
-                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

16,868           17,374           17,896           18,432           18,985           19,555           
(58,322)          (57,816)          (57,294)          (52,535)          (51,982)          (51,412)          

935                (485)               (178)               508                1,750             3,143             

771                20,463           45,746           82,762           92,923           103,607         

(33,108)          (32,338)          (11,874)          33,872           116,634         209,556         

(32,338)$        (11,874)$        33,872$         116,634$       209,556$       313,164$       

53,225$         53,225$         53,225$         53,225$         53,225$         53,225$         

(85,562)$        (65,099)$        (19,353)$        63,409$         156,332$       259,939$       

64



General Fund Operations and All Funds Cash Balances

General Fund Balance as a Percent of Revenue:

The General fund fund balance should be maintained at a level to provide for adequate working capital reserves. 
Typically a 50% reserve is a sufficient target and that appears to be an adequate target for Mayer based on 
revenue and expenditure patterns. The City can build to this target by adding to contingency each year. This can 
be accomplished by reducing expenditures and maintaining the same level of revenue or increasing tax levy.

 $-

 $200,000

 $400,000

 $600,000

 $800,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,200,000

 $1,400,000

Fund Balance Budget Target Fund Balance (50%)

General Fund Balance as a 
Percent of Expenditures

65



General Fund Operations and All Funds Cash Balances (Continued)

Cash Balance by Planned Use:
The balances represented in this graph are categorized by the planned use and/or limitations determined by 
statute.

 $-

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

 $6,000,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Cash Balance by Planned Use

Special revenue limited to specific purpose
Agency
Enterprise capital and working capital
Capital projects
Debt service
General fund working capital

66



Tax Rates

Tax Rates:

Tax rates are a function of the levy and total tax base. The city tax rate is computed by dividing the city levy by 
the taxable tax capacity.  The City has a goal of maintaining a consistent tax levy. Comparable communities are 
provided for reference.

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Annual Tax Rates

General Scheduled debt levies Proposed levies to fund CIP

67



Tax Rates (Continued)

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

140%

Mayer Cologne NYA Hamburg

Tax Capacity Rates - 2015 - 2019, 2020 Estimated

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 est

68



Property Taxes by Type

This graph highlights the percent of levy by planned use. It is notable that 52% of the levy is allocated to debt in 
2018 and is scheduled to decrease.

Percent of Property Taxes - General Levy and 

 $-

 $200,000

 $400,000

 $600,000

 $800,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,200,000

 $1,400,000

 $1,600,000

 $1,800,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Property Taxes - General Levy, Bonds and 
Potential Levies to Balance Projects

General Scheduled debt levies Proposed levies to fund CIP

69



Property Taxes by Type (Continued)

The overall property tax levy for an average valued house is highlighted 
above.

Projected City Tax Impact 

 $215,000

 $220,000

 $225,000

 $230,000

 $235,000

 $240,000

 $245,000

 $250,000

 $255,000

 $260,000

$0

$200

$400

$600

$800

$1,000

$1,200

$1,400

$1,600

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Projected City Tax Impact

Median Home Taxes (from city) Median Home Value

70



Debt

Debt Balances
There are anticipated debt issues in the projection in 2021 and after. The majority of the City's debt is enterprise 
(utility) debt. 

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

$8,000,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Projected Debt Balances Based on Current Amortizations and 
New Debt Assumed in CIP

Lease Purchase Agreements G.O. Improvement Bonds
G.O. Revenue Bonds Potential new debt - governmental
Potential new debt - business type

71



Debt (Continued)

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

$3,000

$3,500

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Debt Per Capita, 2018 Actual, 
2019 - 2024 Estimated

Debt Per Capita

72



Request for Council Action Memorandum 
Item: Five-Year Street Reconstruction Plan   
Meeting Date: March 9, 2020  
Presented By: Margaret McCallum, City Administrator 
 
Recommendations/Council Action/Motion Requested: 
To review a five-year street reconstruction plan that would per state statute allow for the City 
of Mayer to issue bonds to finance capital expenditures under its street reconstruction plan.  
 
To call for a Public Hearing on March 23, 2020 that would allow the City to accept comment on 
the five-year street reconstruction plan. At the March 23, 2020 meeting, discuss and approve 
the plan.   
 
Details: 
In 2018, the City of Mayer worked with the City Engineer to draft a 10 year Pavement 
Management Plan for the city streets in Mayer.  

 
 
In 2020, the first phase of the schedule will start with a section of the Coldwater Crossing 
Development with a Mill and Overlay Project. The City Administrator and financial advisors 
believe and recommend the 2020 project be financed with cash out of the Streets Capital Fund.  
 
Nonetheless, the City needs an additional method to finance future projects in which it is not 
able to finance with cash.  
 
Minnesota Statute allows cities to issue bonds to finance capital expenditures under a Street 
Reconstruction Plan over a period of five years (the “Plan”) without an election provided that, 

73



among other things, prior to issuing the bonds the City adopts the Plan after a public hearing in 
which the public is invited to comment on the matter.  
 
The City Council must take the following actions before Bonds can be issued: 

1. City Council directs the preparation of the 5-year Street Reconstruction Plan  
2. City Council conducts a Public Hearing on the issuance of Bonds and Street 

Reconstruction Plan.  
3. City Council approves Bond and Street Reconstruction Plan by a unanimous vote.  

 
City staff and Ehlers and Associates is recommending that the City Council review the attached 
Street Reconstruction Plan and call for a Public Hearing on March 23, 2020. After the public 
hearing and the acceptance of public comment, the City Council would discuss approving the 
Plan. Once approved, the City’s intent would then be to issue bonds to pay for the projects.  
 
The Bonds would be issued in an aggregate principal amount to not exceed $2,200,000.00 to 
finance to reconstruction and maintenance of streets throughout the City.  
 
The total amount of requested expenditures is $1,959,000.00. This would be generated through 
the City’s tax levy and bonds.  
 
Under the plan, the City would secure $2,110,000.00 in GO Bonds in the years 2020 – 2024 to 
finance the projects. The bonds will be repaid over a 10 – 15 year period.  
 
Proposed Bonds:  
$755,000.00 – 2020A– 10 year – or - $755,000.00 – 2020A – 15 year  
$770,000.00 – 2022A – 10 year 
$585,000.00 – 2024A – 10 year  
 
Attachments.  
Resolution 3-9-20-13.  
City of Mayer Street Reconstruction Plan – Draft.  
 
 
 
 
 
  

74



 

 

 
 

2020 through 2024 
 

Five-Year Street Reconstruction Plan for the 
 

City of Mayer, Minnesota 
 

March 23, 2020 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 
 

City Staff 
 

and 
 

Ehlers & Associates, Inc. 
3060 Centre Pointe Drive 

Roseville, MN  55113 
 
 

 

75



 

 
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.           Page 2 

 
Table of Contents 
 

 
I. INTRODUCTION ................................................................................ 3 

 
II. PURPOSE ............................................................................................. 4 
 
III. THE STREET RECONSTRUCTION PLANNING PROCESS ......... 5 

 
IV. PROJECT SUMMARY ........................................................................ 6 
 
V. FINANCING THE STREET RECONSTRUCTION PLAN ............... 7 
 

 
 
 
PROJECT COSTS ........................................................... APPENDIX A 
 
PROPOSED SRP BOND ISSUES .................................. APPENDIX B 

 
PRE-SALE SCHEDULE................................................. APPENDIX C 

 
RESOLUTIONS/NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ..... APPENDIX D 

 

 
 

76



 

 
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.           Page 3 

 

City of Mayer 

Five-Year Street Reconstruction Plan 

2020 through 2024 

 

 
I. INTRODUCTION 

 
In 2002, the Minnesota State Legislature passed into law a bill which 
generally exempts city bonds issued under a street reconstruction program 
from the referendum requirements usually required for bonding expenditures.  
In 2013 the Legislature amended the law to allow bituminous overlays to be 
included in the street reconstruction program. The authorization is contained 
in Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.58, subdivision 3b (the “Act”). 
 

77



 

 
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.           Page 4 

 
II. PURPOSE 

 
Street reconstruction or bituminous overlay is a major expenditure of city 
funds for the reconstruction or overlay of streets.  As defined in the Act, street 
reconstruction and bituminous overlay may include utility replacement and 
relocation and other incidental costs, turn lanes and other improvements 
having a substantial public safety function, realignments, other modifications 
to intersect with state and county roads, and the local share of state and county 
road projects.  Except in the case of turn lanes, safety improvements, 
realignments, intersection modifications, and local share of state and county 
road projects, street reconstruction does not include the portion of project 
costs allocable to widening a street or adding curbs and gutters where none 
previously existed. 
 
A Street Reconstruction Plan (SRP) is a document designed to anticipate 
street reconstruction and overlay expenditures and schedule them over a five-
year period so that they may be purchased in the most efficient and cost-
effective method possible.  An SRP allows the matching of expenditures with 
anticipated income. As potential expenditures are reviewed, the city considers 
the benefits, costs, alternatives and impact on operating expenditures. 
 
The City of Mayer, Minnesota (the “City”) believes the street reconstruction 
and overlay process is an important element of responsible fiscal 
management.  Major capital expenditures can be anticipated and coordinated 
to minimize potentially adverse financial impacts caused by the timing and 
magnitude of capital outlays.  This coordination of capital expenditures is 
important to the City in achieving its goals of adequate physical assets and 
sound fiscal management. In these financially difficult times good planning is 
essential for the wise use of limited financial resources. 
 
The Street Reconstruction Plan is designed to be updated on an annual basis.  
In this manner, it becomes an ongoing fiscal planning tool that continually 
anticipates future capital expenditures and funding sources. 

78



 

 
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.           Page 5 

 
III. THE STREET RECONSTRUCTION PLANNING PROCESS 

 
The City Council annually reviews its capital expenditures according to their 
priority, fiscal impact, and available funding as part of its Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP) process.  The City assembles the specific capital 
expenditures to be undertaken within the next five years.  The City Council 
prepares a plan based on the available funding sources. From this information, 
a preliminary CIP is prepared for public discussion from citizens and other 
governmental units.  Changes are made based on that input, and a final plan is 
established. 
 
Over the life of the CIP, once the funding becomes available the individual 
capital expenditures can be made as part of individual project approvals.  In 
subsequent years, the process is repeated as expenditures are completed and 
new needs arise. 
 
If bonding is necessary, the City works with its financial advisor to prepare a 
bond sale and repayment schedule.  Street reconstruction and overlay planning 
occurs separately from the CIP process focusing specifically on street 
reconstruction and overlay projects to be financed with general obligation 
street reconstruction bonds under provisions of the Act.  The SRP is to 
describe the identified street reconstruction and overlay projects to be 
financed, their estimated costs, and any planned reconstruction or overlay of 
other streets in the City over the next five years. 
 
For a city to use its authority under the Act to finance street reconstruction and 
bituminous overlay expenditures with general obligation bonds, it must meet 
the requirements provided therein.  Specifically, the city must hold a public 
hearing for public input on an SRP.  Notice of such hearing must be published 
in the official newspaper of the city at least 10, but not more than 28 days 
prior to the date of the public hearing.  In addition, the council must approve 
the SRP and issuance of street reconstruction bonds by a two-thirds majority 
vote of its membership present at the meeting following a public hearing. 
 
Although a referendum is not required, a reverse referendum is allowable.  If a 
petition requesting a vote on the issuance of bonds bearing the signatures of at 
least 5 percent of the votes cast in the last municipal general election is filed 
with the municipal clerk within 30 days after the public hearing, a referendum 
vote on the issuance of the bonds shall be required to authorize the issuance.  

79



 

 
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.           Page 6 

If the municipality elects not to submit the question to the voters, the 
municipality shall not propose the issuance of bonds under the Act for the 
same purpose for a period of 365 days from the date of receipt of the petition. 
 
 

IV. PROJECT SUMMARY 
 

The expenditures to be undertaken with this Street Reconstruction Plan (SRP) 
are limited to those listed in Appendix A.  All other foreseeable capital 
expenditures within the City government will come through other means.  The 
following expenditures have been submitted for inclusion in this SRP: 
 
2020 through 2024 Expenditures 
 

 To finance the construction of various bituminous mill/overlay and 
complete street reconstruction projects in the City. The project goal is 
to provide long-term safety, capacity, and preservation improvements to 
accommodate the needs of the City of Mayer. 

 
Based on the current age and condition of the City’s roads, it is recommended 
by the City Council and City Engineer in the Pavement Management Plan, 
dated August 7, 2018 that a mill/overlay be planned for each street when the 
pavement is approximately 20-years old.  In addition, there are a few streets in 
the City that should be considered for complete reconstruction during the 
planning period. 
 

Pavement Management Plan 
   

City of Mayer 
   

Year  M & O  Recon.  Total 

2020  $ 290,000.00    $ 290,000.00 

2021    $ 420,000.00  $ 420,000.00 

2022  $ 273,000.00    $ 273,000.00 

2023  $ 440,000.00    $ 440,000.00 

2024  $ 536,000.00    $ 536,000.00 

 
 
Any additional expenditures for 2020 through 2024 are not known at this 
time. 
 

80



 

 
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.           Page 7 

V. FINANCING THE STREET RECONSTRUCTION PLAN 
 

The total amount of requested expenditures under the Street Reconstruction 
Plan is $1,959,000.  If these expenditures are to be funded, that amount of 
money is anticipated to be generated through the tax levy and the sale of 
$2,110,000 in bonds over the five-year period. 
 
In the financing of the Street Reconstruction Plan, one statutory limitation 
applies.  Under Chapter 475, with few exceptions, cities cannot incur debt in 
excess of 3% of the assessor’s estimated market value for the city.  In the City 
the EMV is $193,996,400.  Therefore, the total amount of outstanding debt 
cannot exceed $5,819,892.  As of March 23, 2020, the City had $205,000 
subject to the legal debt limit. 
 
Under the Street Reconstruction Plan, the City will secure $2,110,000 in 
general obligation bonds in the years 2020 through 2024 to finance the 
construction of various bituminous mill/overlay and complete street 
reconstruction projects in the City. The project goal is to provide long-term 
safety, capacity, and preservation improvements to accommodate the needs of 
the City of Mayer.  The general obligation bond issue will be repaid over a 10 
to 15-year period.  The par amount of the issue is based on the amounts listed 
in Appendix A plus estimated issuance costs.  The proposed general 
obligation street reconstruction bonds (including issuance costs) are shown in 
Appendix B.  The City reserves the right to delay reconstruction projects until 
subsequent years of this Plan and postpone the issuance of Bonds in more than 
one series, so long as the Bonds so issued do not exceed $2,200,000. 
 
Continuation of the Street Reconstruction Plan 

 
This Street Reconstruction Plan should be reviewed annually by the City 
Council using the process outlined in this Plan.  It should review proposed 
expenditures, make priority decisions, and seek funding for those expenditures 
it deems necessary for the City.  If deemed appropriate, the Council should 
prepare an update to this Plan. 
 

81



 

 
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.           Page 8 

APPENDIX A 

 

PROJECT COSTS 

 

The 2020 through 2024 Capital Expenditure of approximately $1,959,000 is to be 
funded by bond proceeds to finance the construction of various bituminous mill/overlay 
and complete street reconstruction projects in the City. The project goal is to provide 
long-term safety, capacity, and preservation improvements to accommodate the needs 
of the City of Mayer. 

 

82



 

 
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.           Page 9 

APPENDIX B 

PROPOSED SRP BOND ISSUES 

 

City of Mayer, Minnesota 
$755,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A 
Assumes Current Market BQ AA Rates plus 20bps 

10 Years 

Sources & Uses 

 Dated 05/13/2020 |  Delivered 05/13/2020

Sources Of Funds 
Par Amount of Bonds $755,000.00
 
Total Sources $755,000.00
 
Uses Of Funds 
Total Underwriter's Discount  (1.300%) 9,815.00
Costs of Issuance 32,000.00
Deposit to Project Construction Fund 710,000.00
Rounding Amount 3,185.00
 
Total Uses $755,000.00  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

83



 

 
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.           Page 10 

City of Mayer, Minnesota 
$755,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A 
Assumes Current Market BQ AA Rates plus 20bps 

10 Years 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total
05/13/2020 - - - - -
02/01/2021 - - 7,048.42 7,048.42 7,048.42
08/01/2021 - - 4,917.50 4,917.50 -
02/01/2022 70,000.00 1.100% 4,917.50 74,917.50 79,835.00
08/01/2022 - - 4,532.50 4,532.50 -
02/01/2023 70,000.00 1.100% 4,532.50 74,532.50 79,065.00
08/01/2023 - - 4,147.50 4,147.50 -
02/01/2024 75,000.00 1.150% 4,147.50 79,147.50 83,295.00
08/01/2024 - - 3,716.25 3,716.25 -
02/01/2025 75,000.00 1.150% 3,716.25 78,716.25 82,432.50
08/01/2025 - - 3,285.00 3,285.00 -
02/01/2026 75,000.00 1.200% 3,285.00 78,285.00 81,570.00
08/01/2026 - - 2,835.00 2,835.00 -
02/01/2027 75,000.00 1.250% 2,835.00 77,835.00 80,670.00
08/01/2027 - - 2,366.25 2,366.25 -
02/01/2028 75,000.00 1.350% 2,366.25 77,366.25 79,732.50
08/01/2028 - - 1,860.00 1,860.00 -
02/01/2029 80,000.00 1.450% 1,860.00 81,860.00 83,720.00
08/01/2029 - - 1,280.00 1,280.00 -
02/01/2030 80,000.00 1.550% 1,280.00 81,280.00 82,560.00
08/01/2030 - - 660.00 660.00 -
02/01/2031 80,000.00 1.650% 660.00 80,660.00 81,320.00

Total $755,000.00 - $66,248.42 $821,248.42 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $4,786.08
Average Life 6.339 Years
Average Coupon 1.3841886%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 1.5892623%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.5989308%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.3808428%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.3370871%
 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 1.3841886%
Weighted Average Maturity 6.339 Years  

 

 

 

84



 

 
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.           Page 11 

City of Mayer, Minnesota 
$755,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A 
Assumes Current Market BQ AA Rates plus 20bps 

15 Years 

Sources & Uses 

 Dated 05/13/2020 |  Delivered 05/13/2020

Sources Of Funds 
Par Amount of Bonds $755,000.00
 
Total Sources $755,000.00
 
Uses Of Funds 
Total Underwriter's Discount  (1.300%) 9,815.00
Costs of Issuance 32,000.00
Deposit to Project Construction Fund 710,000.00
Rounding Amount 3,185.00
 
Total Uses $755,000.00  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

85



 

 
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.           Page 12 

City of Mayer, Minnesota 
$755,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A 
Assumes Current Market BQ AA Rates plus 20bps 

15 Years 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I Fiscal Total
05/13/2020 - - - - -
02/01/2021 - - 8,338.42 8,338.42 8,338.42
08/01/2021 - - 5,817.50 5,817.50 -
02/01/2022 45,000.00 1.100% 5,817.50 50,817.50 56,635.00
08/01/2022 - - 5,570.00 5,570.00 -
02/01/2023 45,000.00 1.100% 5,570.00 50,570.00 56,140.00
08/01/2023 - - 5,322.50 5,322.50 -
02/01/2024 45,000.00 1.150% 5,322.50 50,322.50 55,645.00
08/01/2024 - - 5,063.75 5,063.75 -
02/01/2025 50,000.00 1.150% 5,063.75 55,063.75 60,127.50
08/01/2025 - - 4,776.25 4,776.25 -
02/01/2026 50,000.00 1.200% 4,776.25 54,776.25 59,552.50
08/01/2026 - - 4,476.25 4,476.25 -
02/01/2027 50,000.00 1.250% 4,476.25 54,476.25 58,952.50
08/01/2027 - - 4,163.75 4,163.75 -
02/01/2028 50,000.00 1.350% 4,163.75 54,163.75 58,327.50
08/01/2028 - - 3,826.25 3,826.25 -
02/01/2029 50,000.00 1.450% 3,826.25 53,826.25 57,652.50
08/01/2029 - - 3,463.75 3,463.75 -
02/01/2030 50,000.00 1.550% 3,463.75 53,463.75 56,927.50
08/01/2030 - - 3,076.25 3,076.25 -
02/01/2031 50,000.00 1.650% 3,076.25 53,076.25 56,152.50
08/01/2031 - - 2,663.75 2,663.75 -
02/01/2032 50,000.00 1.800% 2,663.75 52,663.75 55,327.50
08/01/2032 - - 2,213.75 2,213.75 -
02/01/2033 55,000.00 1.900% 2,213.75 57,213.75 59,427.50
08/01/2033 - - 1,691.25 1,691.25 -
02/01/2034 55,000.00 2.000% 1,691.25 56,691.25 58,382.50
08/01/2034 - - 1,141.25 1,141.25 -
02/01/2035 55,000.00 2.050% 1,141.25 56,141.25 57,282.50
08/01/2035 - - 577.50 577.50 -
02/01/2036 55,000.00 2.100% 577.50 55,577.50 56,155.00

Total $755,000.00 - $116,025.92 $871,025.92 -

Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $6,781.08
Average Life 8.982 Years
Average Coupon 1.7110234%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 1.8557642%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 1.8603589%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 1.7006334%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 2.4013660%
 
IRS Form 8038 
Net Interest Cost 1.7110234%
Weighted Average Maturity 8.982 Years  

86



 

 
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.           Page 13 

City of Mayer, Minnesota 
$770,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022A 
Assumes Current Market BQ AA Rates plus 100bps 

10 Years 

Sources & Uses 

 Dated 05/01/2022 |  Delivered 05/01/2022

Sources Of Funds 
Par Amount of Bonds $770,000.00
 
Total Sources $770,000.00
 
Uses Of Funds 
Total Underwriter's Discount  (1.300%) 10,010.00
Costs of Issuance 32,000.00
Deposit to Capitalized Interest (CIF) Fund 12,166.88
Deposit to Project Construction Fund 713,000.00
Rounding Amount 2,823.12
 
Total Uses $770,000.00  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

87



 

 
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.           Page 14 

City of Mayer, Minnesota 
$770,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2022A 
Assumes Current Market BQ AA Rates plus 100bps 

10 Years 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I CIF
Net New 

D/S Fiscal Total
05/01/2022 - - - - - - -
02/01/2023 - - 12,166.88 12,166.88 (12,166.88) - -
08/01/2023 - - 8,111.25 8,111.25 - 8,111.25 -
02/01/2024 70,000.00 1.900% 8,111.25 78,111.25 - 78,111.25 86,222.50
08/01/2024 - - 7,446.25 7,446.25 - 7,446.25 -
02/01/2025 70,000.00 1.900% 7,446.25 77,446.25 - 77,446.25 84,892.50
08/01/2025 - - 6,781.25 6,781.25 - 6,781.25 -
02/01/2026 75,000.00 1.950% 6,781.25 81,781.25 - 81,781.25 88,562.50
08/01/2026 - - 6,050.00 6,050.00 - 6,050.00 -
02/01/2027 75,000.00 1.950% 6,050.00 81,050.00 - 81,050.00 87,100.00
08/01/2027 - - 5,318.75 5,318.75 - 5,318.75 -
02/01/2028 75,000.00 2.000% 5,318.75 80,318.75 - 80,318.75 85,637.50
08/01/2028 - - 4,568.75 4,568.75 - 4,568.75 -
02/01/2029 75,000.00 2.050% 4,568.75 79,568.75 - 79,568.75 84,137.50
08/01/2029 - - 3,800.00 3,800.00 - 3,800.00 -
02/01/2030 80,000.00 2.150% 3,800.00 83,800.00 - 83,800.00 87,600.00
08/01/2030 - - 2,940.00 2,940.00 - 2,940.00 -
02/01/2031 80,000.00 2.250% 2,940.00 82,940.00 - 82,940.00 85,880.00
08/01/2031 - - 2,040.00 2,040.00 - 2,040.00 -
02/01/2032 85,000.00 2.350% 2,040.00 87,040.00 - 87,040.00 89,080.00
08/01/2032 - - 1,041.25 1,041.25 - 1,041.25 -
02/01/2033 85,000.00 2.450% 1,041.25 86,041.25 - 86,041.25 87,082.50

Total $770,000.00 - $108,361.88 $878,361.88 (12,166.88) $866,195.00 -

Significant Dates 
 
Dated 5/01/2022
First Coupon Date 2/01/2023
 
Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $4,952.50
Average Life 6.432 Years
Average Coupon 2.1880238%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 2.3901440%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.4044056%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 2.1824325%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 3.1409206%
 
IRS Form 8038 
 
Net Interest Cost 2.1880238%
Weighted Average Maturity 6.432 Years  

 

88



 

 
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.           Page 15 

City of Mayer, Minnesota 
$585,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2024A 
Assumes Current Market BQ AA Rates plus 100bps 

10 Years 

Sources & Uses 

 Dated 05/01/2024 |  Delivered 05/01/2024

Sources Of Funds 
Par Amount of Bonds $585,000.00
 
Total Sources $585,000.00
 
Uses Of Funds 
Total Underwriter's Discount  (1.300%) 7,605.00
Costs of Issuance 30,000.00
Deposit to Capitalized Interest (CIF) Fund 9,243.75
Deposit to Project Construction Fund 536,000.00
Rounding Amount 2,151.25
 
Total Uses $585,000.00  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

89



 

 
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.           Page 16 

City of Mayer, Minnesota 
$585,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2024A 
Assumes Current Market BQ AA Rates plus 100bps 

10 Years 

Debt Service Schedule 

Date Principal Coupon Interest Total P+I CIF
Net New 

D/S Fiscal Total
05/01/2024 - - - - - - -
02/01/2025 - - 9,243.75 9,243.75 (9,243.75) - -
08/01/2025 - - 6,162.50 6,162.50 - 6,162.50 -
02/01/2026 55,000.00 1.900% 6,162.50 61,162.50 - 61,162.50 67,325.00
08/01/2026 - - 5,640.00 5,640.00 - 5,640.00 -
02/01/2027 55,000.00 1.900% 5,640.00 60,640.00 - 60,640.00 66,280.00
08/01/2027 - - 5,117.50 5,117.50 - 5,117.50 -
02/01/2028 55,000.00 1.950% 5,117.50 60,117.50 - 60,117.50 65,235.00
08/01/2028 - - 4,581.25 4,581.25 - 4,581.25 -
02/01/2029 55,000.00 1.950% 4,581.25 59,581.25 - 59,581.25 64,162.50
08/01/2029 - - 4,045.00 4,045.00 - 4,045.00 -
02/01/2030 55,000.00 2.000% 4,045.00 59,045.00 - 59,045.00 63,090.00
08/01/2030 - - 3,495.00 3,495.00 - 3,495.00 -
02/01/2031 60,000.00 2.050% 3,495.00 63,495.00 - 63,495.00 66,990.00
08/01/2031 - - 2,880.00 2,880.00 - 2,880.00 -
02/01/2032 60,000.00 2.150% 2,880.00 62,880.00 - 62,880.00 65,760.00
08/01/2032 - - 2,235.00 2,235.00 - 2,235.00 -
02/01/2033 60,000.00 2.250% 2,235.00 62,235.00 - 62,235.00 64,470.00
08/01/2033 - - 1,560.00 1,560.00 - 1,560.00 -
02/01/2034 65,000.00 2.350% 1,560.00 66,560.00 - 66,560.00 68,120.00
08/01/2034 - - 796.25 796.25 - 796.25 -
02/01/2035 65,000.00 2.450% 796.25 65,796.25 - 65,796.25 66,592.50

Total $585,000.00 - $82,268.75 $667,268.75 (9,243.75) $658,025.00 -

Significant Dates 
 
Dated 5/01/2024
First Coupon Date 2/01/2025
 
Yield Statistics 
 
Bond Year Dollars $3,758.75
Average Life 6.425 Years
Average Coupon 2.1887263%
 
Net Interest Cost (NIC) 2.3910542%
True Interest Cost (TIC) 2.4053501%
Bond Yield for Arbitrage Purposes 2.1831211%
All Inclusive Cost (AIC) 3.3215768%
 
IRS Form 8038 
 
Net Interest Cost 2.1887263%
Weighted Average Maturity 6.425 Years  

 

90



 

 
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.           Page 17 

APPENDIX C 
 

Pre-Sale Schedule dated March 4, 2020  
5-Year City Street Reconstruction Plan Bond Issuance 

City of Mayer, Minnesota 
 
The City Council must take the following actions before Bonds can be issued: 
 

 City Council directs preparation of a 5-Year Street Reconstruction Plan. 
 

 City Council conducts a Public Hearing on issuance of Bonds and Street Reconstruction Plan. 
 

 City Council approves Bonds and Street Reconstruction Plan by unanimous vote. 
 
The table below lists the steps in the issuing process: 
 
 
3/9 City Council calls for Public Hearing on issuance of Bonds and on Street Reconstruction Plan. 
 
3/10 @ 10a Close date to get Notice of Public Hearing on issuance of Bonds and on Street Reconstruction Plan to 

official newspaper for publication. 

3/13 Publish Notice of Public Hearing on issuance of Bonds and on Street Reconstruction Plan (publication no 
more than 28 days and no less than 10 days prior to hearing date). 

3/23 @ 6:30p City Council holds Public Hearing on Bonds and on Street Reconstruction Plan and adopts Resolution 
giving preliminary approval for their issuance and approving Street Reconstruction Plan by unanimous 
vote of its membership present. 

4/13 City Council provides for sale of Bonds. 

Week of 4/13 Ehlers distributes official statement. 

Week of 4/20 Conference call with Standard & Poor’s for bond rating. 
 
4/22 Reverse referendum period ends (within 30 days of the public hearing). 
 
4/27 City Council accepts offer for Bonds and adopts Resolution-Approving sale of Bonds. 
 
5/13  Tentative closing/receipt of funds. 
 

Assessor's Estimated Market Value 193,996,400

Multiply by 3% 0.03

Statutory Debt Limit 5,819,892

Less: Debt Paid Solely from Taxes (205,000)

Unused Debt Limit 5,614,892

Net Debt Limit

 
 

91



 

 
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.           Page 18 

APPENDIX D 
 

RESOLUTIONS/NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
 

EXTRACT OF MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAYER, MINNESOTA 

 
 

HELD: March 9, 2020 
 

 
 
 Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the City Council of City of Mayer, 
Minnesota, was duly called and held at the Mayer City Hall on Monday the 9th day of March, 2020 at 
6:30 p.m. for the purpose, in part, of calling a public hearing on the intention to issue general 
obligation street reconstruction plan bonds and the proposal to adopt a street reconstruction plan 
therefor. 
 
 The following members were present: 
 
and the following were absent: 
 
 Member _______________________ introduced the following resolution and moved its 
adoption: 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION CALLING PUBLIC HEARING ON 
THE INTENSION TO ISSUE GENERAL OBLIGATION STREET 
RECONSTRUCTION PLAN BONDS AND THE PROPOSAL TO 

ADOPT A STREET RECONSTRUCTION PLAN THEREFOR 
 

 A. WHEREAS, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.58, Subdivision 3b the City of 
Mayer, Minnesota (the “City”) may issue bonds to finance capital expenditures under its street 
reconstruction plan over a period of five years (the “Plan”) without an election provided that, among 
other things, prior to issuing the bonds the City adopts the Plan after a public hearing thereon and 
publishes a notice of its intention to issue the bonds and the date and time of a hearing to obtain public 
comment on the matter; and 
 
 
 B. WHEREAS, the City Council will hold a public hearing on its intention to  
issue general obligation street reconstruction plan bonds in one or more series from time to time (the 
“Bonds”) and to adopt the Plan therefor pursuant thereto on March 23, 2020; and 

92



 

 
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.           Page 19 

  NOW, THEREFOR, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mayer, 
Minnesota, that the City Council hereby calls for a public hearing on its intent to issue the Bonds and 
to adopt the Plan therefor, such hearing to be held on the date and time set forth in Exhibit A attached 
hereto.  The City Council is hereby directed to cause the notice to be published at least 10 but not more 
than 28 days before the hearing in the official newspaper of the City or a newspaper of general 
circulation in the City. 
 
 
 The motion for the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly seconded by member 
__________________ and, after full discussion thereof and upon a vote being taken thereon, the 
following voted in favor thereof: 
 
 
and the following voted the same: 
 
 Whereupon said resolution was declared duly passed and adopted. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

93



 

 
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.           Page 20 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
COUNTY OF CARVER 
CITY OF MAYER 
 
 
 
 I, the undersigned, being duly qualified and acting Administrator of the City of Mayer, 
Minnesota, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I have compared the attached and foregoing extract of 
minutes with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a full, true and complete 
transcript of the minutes of a meeting of the City Council of said City, duly called and held on the date 
therein indicated, insofar as such minutes relate to the City Council calling a public hearing on the 
intension to issue general obligation street reconstruction plan bonds and proposal to adopt a street 
reconstruction plan therefor. 
 
 WITNESS my hand on this 9th day of March, 2020. 
 
       
       

 
 

______________________________ 
City Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

94



 

 
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.           Page 21 

EXHIBIT A 
 

CITY OF MAYER, MINNESOTA 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
ON INTENTION TO ISSUE 

GENERAL OBLIGATION STREET RECONSTRUCTION PLAN BONDS 
AND PROPOSAL TO ADOPT A STREET 
RECONSTRUCTION PLAN THEREFOR 

 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of Mayer, Minnesota (the 
“City”), will hold a public hearing on Monday, March 23, 2020, at or after 6:30 p.m. in the City Council 
Chambers at City Hall, 413 Bluejay Avenue in the City, relating to a proposal concerning:  (1) the 
adoption of a five-year street reconstruction plan for the reconstruction of certain streets in the City (the 
“Plan”); and (2) the issuance of general obligation street reconstruction bonds in one or more series from 
time to time (the “Bonds”) to finance the reconstruction of certain streets in the City, all pursuant to 
Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.58, subdivision 3b.  The Bonds will be issued in an aggregate principal 
amount of $2,200,000 to finance the construction of various bituminous mill/overlay and complete street 
reconstruction projects in the City. The project goal is to provide long-term safety, capacity, and 
preservation improvements to accommodate the needs of the City of Mayer.  A draft copy of the Plan is 
on file with the City Administrator and is available for public inspection at City Hall during regular 
business hours. 
 
 If a petition requesting a vote on the issuance of the Bonds, signed by voters equal to five 
percent of the votes cast in the last City general election, is filed with the City Administrator within 30 
days after the public hearing, the City may issue the Bonds only after obtaining approval of a majority 
of voters voting on the question at an election. 
 
 At the time and place fixed for the public hearing, the City Council will give all persons who 
appear at the hearing an opportunity to express their views with respect to the proposal.  In addition, 
interested persons may direct any questions or file written comments respecting the proposal with the 
City Administrator, at or prior to said public hearing. 
 
 
Dated:  March 9, 2020 
 

BY ORDER OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MAYER, MINNESOTA 
 
 
 /s/Margaret McCallum      
City Administrator 
City of Mayer, Minnesota 

 
 

[Submit March 10; Publish March 13] 

95



 

 
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.           Page 22 

EXTRACT OF MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MAYER, MINNESOTA 

 
HELD: March 23, 2020 

 
 
 Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Mayer, Minnesota, was duly called and held at the Mayer City Hall on Monday the 23rd day of March, 
2020 at 6:30 p.m. for the purpose, in part, of giving preliminary approval for the issuance of the City’s 
general obligation street reconstruction plan bonds and adopting the City’s street reconstruction plan. 
 
 The following members were present: 
 
 
and the following were absent: 
 
 
 Member ___________________ introduced the following resolution and moved its adoption: 
 

RESOLUTION GIVING PRELIMINARY APPROVAL 
FOR THE ISSUANCE OF THE CITY’S GENERAL OBLIGATION 
STREET RECONSTRUCTION PLAN BONDS IN AN AMOUNT 

NOT TO EXCEED $2,200,000 AND 
ADOPTING THE CITY OF MAYER, MINNESOTA STREET 

RECONSTRUCTION PLAN OF 2020 THROUGH 2024 THEREFOR 
 
 A. WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mayer, Minnesota (the “City”) proposes to 
issue its general obligation street reconstruction plan bonds in one or more series from time to time 
(the “Bonds”) and adopt the City of Mayer, Minnesota Street Reconstruction Plan of 2020 through 
2024 for the construction of certain streets in the City (the “Plan”); and 
 
 B. WHEREAS, the City has caused notice of the public hearing on the intention to issue 
the Bonds and on the proposed adoption of the Plan to be published pursuant to and in accordance 
with Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.58, Subdivision 3b; and 
 
 C. WHEREAS, a public hearing on the intention to issue the Bonds and on the proposed 
Plan has been held on this date, following published notice of the hearing as required by law; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFOR, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mayer, Minnesota, 
that the City hereby gives preliminary approval for the issuance of up to $2,200,000 aggregate 
principal amount of the Bonds.  The Plan is hereby adopted, the same being before the City Council 
and made a part of these proceedings by reference.  The City declares its official intent to reimburse 
itself for the costs of the Plan from the proceeds of the Bonds. 
 

96



 

 
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.           Page 23 

 The motion for the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly seconded by Member 
______________ and, after full discussion thereof and upon a vote being taken thereon, the following 
voted in favor thereof: 
 
 

 
and the following voted against the same: 
 
 Whereupon said resolution was declared duly passed and adopted. 
 

97



 

 
Ehlers & Associates, Inc.           Page 24 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
COUNTY OF CARVER 
CITY OF MAYER 

 
 
 

 I, the undersigned, being duly qualified and acting Administrator of the City of Mayer, 
Minnesota, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I have carefully compared the attached and foregoing extract 
of minutes with the original minutes of a meeting of the City Council of said City, duly called and held 
on the date therein indicated, which are on file and of record in my office, and the same is a full, true 
and complete transcript therefrom insofar as the same relates to a resolution giving preliminary 
approval for the issuance of the City’s general obligation street reconstruction plan bonds and adopting 
the City’s street reconstruction plan therefor. 
 
WITNESS my hand this 23rd day of March, 2020. 
 
 

 
 
 
      _____________________ 

City Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[Bonds must be approved by at least two-thirds of the members.] 
 
[Issuance of Bonds is subject to a 30-day reverse referendum after the public hearing.] 

98



     RESOLUTION 3-9-20-13 
 

RESOLUTION CALLING PUBLIC HEARING ON 
THE INTENSION TO ISSUE GENERAL OBLIGATION STREET 
RECONSTRUCTION PLAN BONDS AND THE PROPOSAL TO 

ADOPT A STREET RECONSTRUCTION PLAN THEREFOR 
 

 A. WHEREAS, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.58, Subdivision 3b the City of 
Mayer, Minnesota (the “City”) may issue bonds to finance capital expenditures under its street 
reconstruction plan over a period of five years (the “Plan”) without an election provided that, among 
other things, prior to issuing the bonds the City adopts the Plan after a public hearing thereon and 
publishes a notice of its intention to issue the bonds and the date and time of a hearing to obtain public 
comment on the matter; and 
 
 B. WHEREAS, the City Council will hold a public hearing on its intention to  
issue general obligation street reconstruction plan bonds in one or more series from time to time (the 
“Bonds”) and to adopt the Plan therefor pursuant thereto on March 23, 2020; and 
 
  NOW, THEREFOR, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Mayer, 
Minnesota, that the City Council hereby calls for a public hearing on its intent to issue the Bonds and 
to adopt the Plan therefor, such hearing to be held on the date and time set forth in Exhibit A attached 
hereto.  The City Council is hereby directed to cause the notice to be published at least 10 but not more 
than 28 days before the hearing in the official newspaper of the City or a newspaper of general 
circulation in the City. 
 The motion for the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly seconded by member 
__________________ and, after full discussion thereof and upon a vote being taken thereon, the 
following voted in favor thereof: 
 
 
and the following voted the same: 
 
 Whereupon said resolution was declared duly passed and adopted. 
 
 
______________________ 
Mike Dodge, Mayor 
 
        ___________________________ 
        Margaret McCallum, City Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

99



 
 
 
 
 
 

100



Smart Play®

(2-5 years)

Smart Play®

(5-12 years)

S
M

A
R

T
 P

L
A

Y
 O

P
T

IO
N

D
IS

C
O

V
E

R
Y

 P
A

R
K

 P
L

A
Y

G
R

O
U

N
D

5
0

0
0

 F
IE

L
D

S
T

O
N

E
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

M
A

Y
E

R
, 
M

N

SALES
REPRESENTATIVE:

BRADY PATE

DESIGNED BY:
ELM

2/25/20

G:\My Drive\2020 Planning\Brady\Brady_Mayer_Discovery_Park\2-25-20 DESIGN

UPDATE\Mayer_Discovery_Park-SmartPlay 022520.dwg

1:1

FLAGSHIP RECREATION
11123 UPPER 33RD ST N
LAKE ELMO, MN 55082

763-550-7860
FLAGSHIPPLAY.COM

@FLAGSHIPPLAY

THIS PLAY AREA & PLAY EQUIPMENT

IS DESIGNED FOR AGE RANGES AS

NOTED ON PLAN.

SHEET

LS101

ADA ACCESSIBILITY (2-5 AGE RANGE)

PROVIDED REQUIRED

TOTAL ELEVATED PLAY COMPONENTS 5

TOTAL ELEVATED COMPONENTS ACCESSIBLE BY RAMP 0 0

TOTAL ELEVATED COMPONENTS ACCESSIBLE BY TRANSFER 5 3

TOTAL ACCESSIBLE GROUND LEVEL COMPONENTS SHOWN 6 2

TOTAL DIFFERENT TYPES OF GROUND LEVEL COMPONENTS 6 6

ADA ACCESSIBILITY (5-12 AGE RANGE)

PROVIDED REQUIRED

TOTAL ELEVATED PLAY COMPONENTS 13

TOTAL ELEVATED COMPONENTS ACCESSIBLE BY RAMP 0 0

TOTAL ELEVATED COMPONENTS ACCESSIBLE BY TRANSFER 8 8

TOTAL ACCESSIBLE GROUND LEVEL COMPONENTS SHOWN 11 4

TOTAL DIFFERENT TYPES OF GROUND LEVEL COMPONENTS 8 8

CONTAINER DETAILS

TOTAL AREA
4,075 SF

TOTAL PERIMETER 281 LF

EDGING TYPE  CONCRETE CURB

TOTAL PIP 421 SF

101

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" ARCH SWING

AutoCAD SHX Text
221292

AutoCAD SHX Text
5" ARCH SWING

AutoCAD SHX Text
221293

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADDITIONAL BAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
177351

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOLDED SEAT/HARNESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/PROGUARD CHAINS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' BEAM HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
174018

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' BEAM HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/PROGUARD CHAINS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELT SEAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
174018

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' BEAM HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/PROGUARD CHAINS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELT SEAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
223857 LOFT

AutoCAD SHX Text
INSIDE: CLOCK COLORS MAT SEATS FIND-IT SIGN LOWER LEVEL CLUBHOUSE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VEGETABLE/LEAF SLIDERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CRAWL TUNNEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOWER/LEAF SPINNERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELT CLIMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOWER GEAR PANEL COUNTING PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALPHABET PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUBBLE WINDOW

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAILBOX  TALK TUBE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEPS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHAPES PANEL IMAGE PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
FACES PANEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELT SEAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
44"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
72

AutoCAD SHX Text
64

AutoCAD SHX Text
56

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
210739 VENTI

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELT BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHINNING BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE POLY SLIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERTICAL PANEL CLIMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIREPOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANEL MAZE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD PLANK LADDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BELT HAMMOCK

AutoCAD SHX Text
SWIGGLE STIX

AutoCAD SHX Text
SQUARE LOOP VERTICAL CLIMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
INCLINED CABLE WALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOUBLE SWOOSH POLY SLIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABIN SEATING AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SQUARE LOOP INCLINE CLIMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABIN CLIMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
TIGHTROPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARGO NET

AutoCAD SHX Text
TURNING BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SQUARE STEPPERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WINDOWPANE OVERHEAD LADDER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SADDLE SPINNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
152179

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" SEAT HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SADDLE SPINNER

AutoCAD SHX Text
152179

AutoCAD SHX Text
16" SEAT HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
182503

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELCOME SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
(LSI PROVIDED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
2-5 YEARS

AutoCAD SHX Text
182503

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELCOME SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
(LSI PROVIDED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5-12 YEARS

AutoCAD SHX Text
177349

AutoCAD SHX Text
HALF BUCKET SEAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/PROGUARD CHAINS

AutoCAD SHX Text
8' BEAM HEIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE IN FEET:



102



103



Date
Expires
Quote:
Contact:
Phone:
Email:

Ship To: Please Make PO's & Contracts Out To:
Discovery Park
5000 Fieldstone Parkway
Mayer, MN 55360
Bill To: Please Remit Payment To:

QTY ITEM # UNIT PRICE EXT. PRICE
1 $62,308.00
1 6.00% ($3,738.48)

Subtotal $58,569.52
Freight $400.00
Sales Tax Tax Exempt Cert
Total $58,969.52

2/25/2020
5/25/2020
City of Mayer - Venti
Maggie McCallum 

0
margaret.mccallum@cityofmayer.com

Description
Design - Mayer_DiscoveryPark-SmartPlay 1-27-20
State Contract Discount 

Landscape Structures 
601 7th St. S
Delano, MN 55328

City of Mayer - Venti Landscape Structures 
413 Bluejay Ave 601 7th St. S
Mayer, MN 55360 Delano, MN 55328

We are pleased to submit this proposal to supply the following products/services:

Quotes from Flagship Recreatoin, Inc. are subject to current Flagship Recreation, Inc. policies as well as Terms & Conditions, Inclusions & Exclusions

outlined below unless noted otherwise on this quote. Changes are subject to price adjustment. Sales tax, if applicable, will be applied unless a

tax-exempt certificate is provided at the time of order entry. Customer deposits, if required, must be received before orders will be entered & installation

scheduled. Purchases in excess of $1,000.00 must be supported by a formal Purchase Order made out to Landscape Structures, Inc.

    Minnesota State Contract #119795
*Terms: Net 30 days; 1.5% finance charge on balances over 30 days

104



Terms & Conditions

 - Bonding of Any Type

Please note, quotes including installation are based on site access and site conditions that have been conveyed to Landscape 
Structures by the owner/owner's representative and based on ideal conditions required to complete the project as quoted. 

Email:

Purchase Amount:

 unless a different amount is first agreed to via Change Order. Changes are subject to price adjustment.
Pricing: Pricing is F.O.B factory. Current year pricing is honored on contracts completed prior to December 3, 2019. Contracts 
completed after this date are subject to price change.
Responsibility: Landscape Structures  shall be repsonsible for any loss or damage to merchandise until delivered to Buyer at F.O.B 
destination point. Buyer is responsible for loss or damage thereafter.
Inspection: Merchandise shall be subject to Buyer's inspection within a reasonable time after the arrival at the ultimate destination.

Page 1 of 2

Contract: Seller's Copy of signed quote represents the contract between Seller and Buyer. This form supercedes all previous 
communications and negotiations and constitutes the entire agreement between the parties. Any changes to this contract 
are not binding unless jointly agreed in writing via Change Order.
Quantity: The quantity of merchandise and/or material to be delivered and/or installed shall not vary from the amount specified

 - Public Utility Locates 
 - Unpacking of Play Equipment
 - Assembly of Play Equipment

Upon inspection, it is the Buyer's responsibility to notify Flagship Recreation if merchandise does not meet requirements of the order.

Project Scope (This Section For Quotes Including Installation)
Inclusions: 
 - One Mobilization

 - Standard Wage Rates

Exclusions (Unless Specifically Quoted):

 - Placing, Digging or Surface Mounting Equipment (as specificed)
 - Concrete for Play Equipment Footings
 - Standard Insurance Offer (Detail Provided Upon Request)
 - Standard Warranty Offer (Detail Provided Upon Request)

 - Offsite Removal of Spoils From Footing Holes or Other Excavation. Can be stockpiled for owner removal or left in play space
 - Disposal of Packing Material. Can be Stockpiled for Owner Removal or Deposited in Owners Onsite Dumpster
 - Removal of Existing Play Equipment, Border or Safety Surfacing Material
 - Site Work of Any Kind. Exclusions include, site grading (owner to provide max slope of 1%), site restoration, drainage, etc.
 - Border for Play Space

 - Accepting & Unloading of Order Prior to Installation
 - Storage or Security of Equipment
 - Private Utility Locates (irrigation, low voltage, lighting, etc.)
 - Additional Labor Due to Site Access. Require 8' Wide Clearance from Staging Area to Play Space.
 - Additional Labor and/or Related Costs Due to Subsurface Conditions (Rock, Hardpan, Heavy Clay, Ground Water, etc.)
 - Additional Labor and/or Related Costs Due to Working in Unstable Soils (Sand, Pea Rock, Mud, Poor Site Drainage, etc.)

Page 2 of 2

Signature: margaret.mccallum@cityofmaye
Title: Phone:
Date: $58,969.52

 - Permits of Any Kind

Unless addressed prior to the installation quote being issued or specifically documented herein, any issues encountered that impede 
the progress or completion of the project as quoted will result in additional charges.

Acceptance of Quotation:
Maggie McCallum PO#:Accepted By (Print)

105



Date
Expires
Quote:
Contact:
Phone:
Email:

Ship To: Please Make PO's & Contracts Out To:
Discovery Park
5000 Fieldstone Parkway
Mayer, MN 55360
Bill To: Please Remit Payment To:

QTY ITEM # UNIT PRICE EXT. PRICE

1 $15,976.47
1 $1,440.00
1 $500.00
1 $525.00

3 138-60PL 675 $2,025.00

72 $1,658.93

Subtotal $22,125.39
Freight
Sales Tax Tax Exempt
Total $22,125.39

tax-exempt certificate is provided at the time of order entry. Customer deposits, if required, must be received before orders will be entered & installation

scheduled. Purchases in excess of $1,000.00 must be supported by a formal Purchase Order made out to Flagship Recreation, Inc.

    Minnesota State Contract #119795
*Terms: Net 30 days; 1.5% finance charge on balances over 30 days

Page 1 of 2

Quotes from Flagship Recreatoin, Inc. are subject to current Flagship Recreation, Inc. policies as well as Terms & Conditions, Inclusions & Exclusions

outlined below unless noted otherwise on this quote. Changes are subject to price adjustment. Sales tax, if applicable, will be applied unless a

Engineered Wood Fiber (CY) bulk drop to Discovery Park after installation

Dumpster (disposal of packaging material & construction debris)

Playground Installation by Landacape Structures Certified Installers
Bench Installation by Landscape Structures Certified Installers
Mobilization 

6ft Bench with back, plastic slats. *items are shipped unassembled*

Flagship Recreation 
11123 Upper 33rd St. N
Lake Elmo, MN 55042

City of Mayer - Venti Flagship Recreation 
413 Bluejay Ave 11123 Upper 33rd St. N
Mayer, MN 55360 Lake Elmo, MN 55042

We are pleased to submit this proposal to supply the following products/services:

3/3/2020
6/1/2020
City of Mayer - Venti
Maggie McCallum 

0
margaret.mccallum@cityofmayer.com

Description

106



Terms & Conditions

 - Bonding of Any Type

Please note, quotes including installation are based on site access and site conditions that have been conveyed to Flagship
Recreation by the owner/owner's representative and based on ideal conditions required to complete the project as quoted. 

Accepted By (Print)
Email:

Purchase Amount:
Title: Phone:
Date: $22,125.39

Page 2 of 2

the progress or completion of the project as quoted will result in additional charges.

Acceptance of Quotation:
Maggie McCallum PO#:

Signature: margaret.mccallum@cityofmaye

 - Removal of Existing Play Equipment, Border or Safety Surfacing Material
 - Site Work of Any Kind. Exclusions include, site grading (owner to provide max slope of 1%), site restoration, drainage, etc.
 - Border for Play Space

 - Permits of Any Kind

Unless addressed prior to the installation quote being issued or specifically documented herein, any issues encountered that impede 

 - Private Utility Locates (irrigation, low voltage, lighting, etc.)
 - Additional Labor Due to Site Access. Require 8' Wide Clearance from Staging Area to Play Space.
 - Additional Labor and/or Related Costs Due to Subsurface Conditions (Rock, Hardpan, Heavy Clay, Ground Water, etc.)
 - Additional Labor and/or Related Costs Due to Working in Unstable Soils (Sand, Pea Rock, Mud, Poor Site Drainage, etc.)
 - Offsite Removal of Spoils From Footing Holes or Other Excavation. Can be stockpiled for owner removal or left in play space
 - Disposal of Packing Material. Can be Stockpiled for Owner Removal or Deposited in Owners Onsite Dumpster

Exclusions (Unless Specifically Quoted):
 - Accepting & Unloading of Order Prior to Installation
 - Storage or Security of Equipment

 - Standard Insurance Offer (Detail Provided Upon Request)
 - Standard Warranty Offer (Detail Provided Upon Request)
 - Standard Wage Rates

 - Unpacking of Play Equipment
 - Assembly of Play Equipment
 - Placing, Digging or Surface Mounting Equipment (as specificed)
 - Concrete for Play Equipment Footings

Project Scope (This Section For Quotes Including Installation)
Inclusions: 
 - One Mobilization
 - Public Utility Locates 

completed after this date are subject to price change.
Responsibility: Flagshi Recreation  shall be repsonsible for any loss or damage to merchandise until delivered to Buyer at F.O.B 
destination point. Buyer is responsible for loss or damage thereafter.
Inspection: Merchandise shall be subject to Buyer's inspection within a reasonable time after the arrival at the ultimate destination.
Upon inspection, it is the Buyer's responsibility to notify Flagship Recreation if merchandise does not meet requirements of the order.

Contract: Seller's Copy of signed quote represents the contract between Seller and Buyer. This form supercedes all previous 
communications and negotiations and constitutes the entire agreement between the parties. Any changes to this contract 
are not binding unless jointly agreed in writing via Change Order.
Quantity: The quantity of merchandise and/or material to be delivered and/or installed shall not vary from the amount specified
 unless a different amount is first agreed to via Change Order. Changes are subject to price adjustment.
Pricing: Pricing is F.O.B factory. Current year pricing is honored on contracts completed prior to December 3, 2019. Contracts 

107



Please sign below if you approve of the colors represented in the photo above.

EQUIPMENT COLOR SIGN OFF
Mayer Discovery Park

INSERT PHOTO HERE

  Customer Signature:______________________________________ Date: _____________

Color Palette
"AL"

PIP Colors (specify colors & Sq. Ft. of each)
TBD

108



ProShield® Colors

For posts/arches, components and clamps, ProShield® finish combines a specially formulated primer with a 

high-quality, architectural-grade powdercoat top layer. The result is enhanced longevity, greater protection 

against UV rays, prevention from corrosion, and improved product performance. Custom colors are available 

for an additional charge.

Learn more about our Color Inspirations at playlsi.com/color-inspirations

Color Choices
Vivid colors for lively play

888.438.6574 • 763.972.5200 playlsi.com

Blue

Tan

Permalene® panels with a recycled 
core are a smart choice for your 
playground and the environment. 
Available in the 16 colors shown,  
the distinctive black core results 
from combining and recycling 
colored plastic—waste that 
would otherwise end up 
in landfills.

Permalene® Color Panels

Leaf
Limon

Green

Grass

Lagoon

Blue
Sky

Denim

Brick

Red

Tangerine

Yellow

Buttercup

Tan

Acorn

Gray

Denim

Blue

Lagoon

Sky

Peacock

Grass

Green

Pine Green

Leaf

Limon

Purple

Plum

Maroon

Berry

Cranberry Red

Red

Paprika

Orange

Tangerine

Yellow

Buttercup

Metallic Silver

Cool Silver Matte

Matte Gray NEW

Carbon 

Black

Brown

Acorn

Tan

Dune

Vanilla

White

109



Tan

GrayBrown

TenderTuff™ Coating   
For swing chains, handholds, pipe 
barriers, wheels, rings, etc. Insulates 
against temperature extremes 
and provides a safer grip surface 
compared to painted metal. 

Blue Red

Steel Decks  The heaviest, 
thickest decks for long-lasting 
safety: Flange-formed from 
12-gauge steel with safe,  
rounded corners. Reinforced  
with .105" x 2" ribs welded on 
cross for superior strength and  
a consistently flat surface.

Steel-Reinforced 
Cables  Made of tightly 
woven, polyester-wrapped, 
six-stranded galvanized-
steel cable. These abrasion-
resistant, color-stable cables 
are extremely durable and 
vandal resistant. 

Brown Gray Black Red

Polyethylene  For slides, tunnels, roofs, etc. The heavy-duty rotationally molded polyethylene material 
ensures strength and durability while resisting cracking, fading and peeling. * Limon, Leaf, Denim, Brick, 
Tangerine, Buttercup, Acorn and Granite are color blends.

©2019 Landscape Structures Inc. Printed in the U.S.A.  755-2549

Brick Red

LimonButtercup

Tangerine

Leaf

Tan

Green

Acorn

Blue

Granite

Denim Lagoon

Gray

Gun Metal

Brown

Denim

Purple

Grass

Orange

Black

Cherry Red Cayenne

Natural

Yellow

Tan

Metallic Silver

Pine Green

Blue

Cedar

Sky Blue Lagoon

Rivergum

Deep Ochre

NEW
SkyWays® and 
CoolToppers® 
Shade Products 
Fabrics

Designed to  
block up to 97% 
of UV rays and 
keep playground 
temperatures 
30 degrees cooler.

SkyWays and 
CoolToppers  
Shade Products  
Flame Retardant 
Fabrics

Stringently tested  
and conform 
to FR standards  
worldwide.

FR Olive FR Cobalt BlueFR Beige FR Terracotta

FR Slate Grey

FR Ivory

NEW

NEW

110



111



112



113



114



 

 

3-Part Specification: PlayBound™ Poured-in-Place 

 

Surface America, Inc. • PO Box 157 • Williamsville, NY 14231 
Phone: (800) 999-0555 • Phone: (716) 632-8413 • Fax: (716) 632-8324 
info@surfaceamerica.com • www.surfaceamerica.com 

PART 1 – GENERAL 
1.01 SUMMARY  

A. Section Includes: Poured-in-Place Playground Surfacing System: Super-7 (when aromatic urethane 
for the top surface is specified) with a 7-year warranty & Extreme-10 (when aliphatic urethane for the 
top surface is specified) with a 10-year warranty. 

Specifier Note: Revise paragraph below to suit project requirements. If a reader of this section could 
reasonably expect to find a product or component specified in this section, but it is actually specified 
elsewhere, then the related section number(s) should be listed in the paragraph below. In the absence 
of related sections, delete paragraph below. 

Specifier Note: Site materials and methods, drainage, playground equipment, fencing, substrate 
preparation and similar work is provided by others and is described in other sections. Consult 
manufacturer for specific substrate preparation requirements. Edit, retain or delete paragraph below to 
suit project requirements and specifier practice.  

B. Related Sections: Division 2 Sitework Sections: Materials and Methods, Excavation, Asphalt Paving, 
Concrete Paving, Sub-Drainage, Storm Drainage, Fencing, Playground Equipment and Structures. 

Specifier Note: Article below may be omitted when specifying manufacturer’s proprietary products 
and recommended installation. Retain References Article when specifying products and installation by 
an industry reference standard. If retained, list standard(s) referenced in this section. Indicate issuing 
authority name, acronym, standard designation and title. Establish policy for indicating edition date of 
standard referenced. Conditions of the Contract or Division 1 References Section may establish the 
edition date of standards. This article does not require compliance with standard. It is a listing of all 
references used in this section. 

1.02 REFERENCES  

A. American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM): 

1. ASTM D412 Standard Test Methods for Vulcanized Rubber and Thermoplastic Rubbers and 
Thermoplastic Elastomers-Tension. 

115

mailto:info@surfaceamerica.com
http://www.surfaceamerica.com


 

 

2. ASTM D624 Standard Test Method for Tear Strength of Conventional Vulcanized Rubber and 
Thermoplastic Elastomers. 

3. ASTM D2047 Standard Test Method for Static Coefficient of Friction of Polish-Coated Floor Surfaces 
as Measured by the James Machine. 

4. ASTM D2859 Standard Test Method for Flammability of Finished Textile Floor Covering Materials. 

5. ASTM E303 Standard Test Method for Measuring Surface Frictional Properties Using the British 
Pendulum Tester. 

6. ASTM F1292 Standard Specification for Impact Attenuation of Surface Systems Under and Around 
Playground Equipment. 

7. ASTM F1951 Standard Specification for Determination of Accessibility of Surface Systems Under 
and Around Playground Equipment. 

Specifier Note: Article below should be restricted to statements describing design or performance 
requirements and functional (not dimensional) tolerances of a complete system. Limit descriptions to 
composite and operational properties required to link components of a system together and to interface 
with other systems. 

1.03 SYSTEM DESCRIPTION  

A. Performance Requirements: Provide a 2-layer rubber-urethane playground surfacing system which 
has been designed, manufactured and installed to meet the following criteria: 

1. Shock Attenuation (ASTM F1292): 

a. Gmax: Less than 200. 

b. Head Injury Criteria: Less than 1000. 

2. Flammability (ASTM D2859): Pass. 

3. Tensile Strength (ASTM D412): 60 psi (413 kPa). 

4. Tear Resistance (ASTM D624): 140%. 

5. Water Permeability: 0.4 gal/yd2/second. 

6. Accessibility: Comply with requirements of ASTM F1951. 

Specifier Note: Article below includes submittal of relevant data to be furnished by Contractor before, 
during or after construction. Coordinate this article with Architect’s and Contractor’s duties and 
responsibilities in Conditions of the Contract and Division 1 Submittal Procedures Section. 

1.04 SUBMITTALS  

A. General: Submit listed submittals in accordance with Conditions of the Contract and Division 1 
Submittal Procedures Section. 

116



 

 

B. Product Data: Submit manufacturer’s product data and installation instructions. 

C. Verification Samples: Submit manufacturer’s standard verification samples of 9" x 9" (229 x 229 mm) 
minimum. 

D. Quality Assurance/Control Submittals: Submit the following: 

1. Certificate of qualifications of the playground surfacing installer. 

E. Closeout Submittals: Submit the following: 

1. Warranty documents specified herein. 

Specifier Note: Article below should include statements of prerequisites, standards, limitations and 
criteria that establish an overall level of quality for products and workmanship for this section. 
Coordinate article below with Division 1 Quality Assurance Section.  

1.05 QUALITY ASSURANCE  

A. Qualifications: Utilize an installer approved and trained by the manufacturer of the playground 
surfacing system, having experience with other projects of the scope and scale of the work described in 
this section. 

B. Certifications: Certification by manufacturer that installer is an approved applicator of the playground 
surfacing system. 

C. International Play Equipment Manufacturers Association (IPEMA) certified. 

Specifier Note: Article below should include specific protection and environmental conditions 
required during storage. Coordinate article below with Division 1 Product Requirements Section. 

1.06 DELIVERY, STORAGE & HANDLING  

A. General: Comply with Division 1 Product Requirement Section. 

B. Delivery: Deliver materials in manufacturer’s original, unopened, undamaged containers with 
identification labels intact. 

C. Storage and Protection: Store materials protected from exposure to harmful environmental 
conditions and at a minimum temperature of 40 degrees F (4 degrees C) and a maximum temperature 
of 90 degrees F (32 degrees C). 

Specifier Note: In article below, state physical or environmental limitations or criteria for installation 
such as weather, temperature, humidity, ventilation or illumination required for proper installation or 
application. 

1.07 PROJECT/SITE CONDITIONS  

A. Environmental Requirements: Install surfacing system when minimum ambient temperature is 40 
degrees F (1 degree C) and maximum ambient temperature is 90 degrees F (32 degrees C). Do not 
install in steady or heavy rain. 

117



 

 

Specifier Note: Coordinate article below with Conditions of the Contract and with Division 1 Closeout 
Submittals (Warranty) Section. Use this article to require special or extended warranty or bond covering 
the work of this section.  

1.08 WARRANTY  

A. Project Warranty: Refer to Conditions of the Contract for project warranty provisions. 

B. Manufacturer’s Warranty: Submit, for Owner’s acceptance, manufacturer’s standard warranty 
document executed by authorized company official. Manufacturer’s warranty is in addition to, and not a 
limitation of, other rights Owner may have under contract documents. 

C. Proper drainage is critical to the longevity of the PlayBound Poured-in-Place surfacing system. 
Inadequate drainage will cause premature breakdown of the poured system in affected areas; and void 
the warranty. 
   

Specifier Note: Coordinate subparagraph below with manufacturer’s warranty requirements. 

1. Warranty Period: Super-7 (when aromatic urethane for the top surface is specified): 7 years from 
date of completion of work. Extreme-10 (when aliphatic urethane for the top surface is specified): 10 
years from date of completion of work.  

PART 2 – PRODUCTS  
Specifier Note: Retain article below for proprietary method specification. Add product attributes, 
performance characteristics, material standards and descriptions as applicable. Use of such phrases as 
"or equal" or "or approved equal" or similar phrases may cause ambiguity in specifications. Such 
phrases require verification (procedural, legal and regulatory) and assignment of responsibility for 
determining "or equal" products. 

2.01 POURED-IN-PLACE PLAYGROUND SURFACING SYSTEM  

Specifier Note: Retain or delete paragraph below per project requirements and specifier’s practice.  

A. Manufacturer: Surface America, Inc. 

1. Contact: PO Box 157, Williamsville, NY 14231; Telephone: (800) 999-0555, (716) 632-8413; Fax: 
(716) 632-8324; E-mail: info@surfaceamerica.com; website: http://www.surfaceamerica.com. 

B. Proprietary Products/Systems. Poured-in-place playground surfacing system, including the following: 

1. PlayBound Poured-In-Place Primer: 

a. Material: Urethane. 

2. PlayBound Poured-in-Place Basemat: 

a. Material: Blend of 100% recycled SBR (styrene butadiene rubber) and urethane. 

118

mailto:info@surfaceamerica.com
http://www.surfaceamerica.com


 

 

Specifier Note: The type of playground equipment determines the required basemat thickness, and 
the basemat thickness may be different at various locations on the playground site. Depending on 
ASTM F1292 requirements for critical fall height (4’, 5’, 6’, 7’, 8’, 9’, 10’, 12’ or 13’ (1219, 1524, 1829, 
2134, 2438, 2743, 3048, 3657 or 3962 mm), select basemat thickness from options provided in 
subparagraph below (1 1/4 ", 2”, 2 1/2", 2 1/2", 3”, 3 1/2", 4", 4 1/2”, 5" or 6" (32, 51, 63, 63, 76, 89, 102, 
114, 127 or 152 mm, respectively). Specify project requirements below and coordinate with working 
drawings.  

b. Thickness: [1 1/4" (31.75 mm) for 4’ critical fall height] [2" (51 mm) for 5’ critical fall height] [2 1/2” (64 
mm) for 6’ and 7’ critical fall heights] [3" (76 mm) for 8’ critical fall height] [3 1/2" (89 mm) for 9’ critical 
fall height] [4" (102 mm) for 10’ critical fall height] [5" (127 mm) for 12’ critical fall height] [6" (152 mm) 
for 13’ critical fall height].  

c. Formulation Components: Blend of strand and granular material. 

3. PlayBound Poured-In-Place Top Surface: 

a. Material: Blend of recycled EPDM (ethylene propylene diene monomer) rubber and aromatic or 
aliphatic urethane binder. 

b. Thickness: Nominal 1/2" (12.7 mm), minimum 3/8" (9.5 mm), maximum 5/8" (15.9 mm). 

c. Color: [Standard] [Terra Cotta Red] [Primary Red] [Orange (indoor only)] [Gold] [Beige] [Yellow] 
[Bright Green] [Army Green] [Hunter Green] [Teal] [Sky Blue] [Royal Blue] [Purple] [Pearl] [Eggshell] 
[Brown] [Light Gray] [Dark Gray] [Black] [Custom color – specify requirements]. 

Specifier Note: Aliphatic urethane (Extreme-10) is recommended for certain colors (blue, teal, purple, 
pearl, eggshell and grays) because aromatic binder (Super-7) “yellows” slightly upon exposure to 
ultraviolet rays. Most of this thin layer of urethane wears off with foot traffic and weathering typically 
within two to six months. This characteristic applies industry-wide. 

d. Dry Static Coefficient of Friction (ASTM D2047): 1.0. 

e. Wet Static Coefficient of Friction (ASTM D2047): 0.9. 

f. Dry Skid Resistance (ASTM E303): 89. 

g. Wet Skid Resistance (ASTM E303): 57. 

Specifier Note: Edit Article below to suit project requirements. If substitutions are permitted, edit text 
below. Add text to refer to Division 1 Project Requirements (Product Substitutions Procedures) Section. 

2.02 PRODUCT SUBSTITUTIONS  

A. Substitutions: No substitutions permitted. 

Specifier Note: Specify proportions and procedures for site mixing materials. Mixing is the 
preparation of materials for use and is considered to be part of the manufacturing process. 

2.03 MIXES  

119



 

 

A. Required mix proportions by weight: 

1. Basemat: 16+% urethane (as ratio: 14% urethane divided by 86% rubber). 14% urethane, 86% 
rubber (based on entire rubber & urethane mix). 

2. Top Surface: 22% urethane (ratio: 18% urethane divided by 82% rubber). 18% urethane, 82% rubber 
(based on entire rubber & urethane mix). 

PART 3 – EXECUTION  
Specifier Note: Revise article below to suit project requirements and specifier’s practice. 

3.01 MANUFACTURER’S INSTRUCTIONS  

A. Comply with the instructions and recommendations of the playground surfacing manufacturer. 

Specifier Note: Specify actions to physically determine that conditions are acceptable to receive primary 
products of the section. 

3.02 EXAMINATION  

A. Substrate preparation must be in accordance with surfacing manufacturer’s specification. New 
asphalt must be fully cured – up to 30 days. New concrete must be fully cured – up to 7 days. 

B. Proper drainage is critical to the longevity of the PlayBound Poured-in-Place surfacing system. 
Inadequate drainage will cause premature breakdown of the poured system in affected areas; and void 
the warranty. 

Specifier Note: Specify actions required to physically prepare the surface, area, or site or to 
incorporate the primary products of the section. 

3.03 PREPARATION  

A. Surface Preparation: Using a brush or short nap roller, apply primer to the substrate perimeter and 
any adjacent vertical barriers such as playground equipment support legs, curbs or slabs that will 
contact the surfacing system at the rate of 300 ft2/gal (7.5 m2/L). 

Specifier Note: Coordinate article below with manufacturer’s recommended installation requirements. 

3.04 INSTALLATION  

A. Do not proceed with playground surfacing installation until all applicable site work, including 
substrate preparation, fencing, playground equipment installation and other relevant work, has been 
completed. 

B. Basemat Installation: 

1. Using screeds and hand trowels, install the basemat at a consistent density of 29 pounds, 1 ounce 
per cubic foot (466 kg/m3) to the specified thickness. 

120



 

 

2. Allow basemat to cure for sufficient time so that indentations are not left in the basemat from 
applicator foot traffic or equipment. 

3. Do not allow foot traffic or use of the basemat surface until it is sufficiently cured. 

C. Primer Application: Using a brush or short nap roller, apply primer to the basemat perimeter and any 
adjacent vertical barriers such as playground equipment support legs, curbs or slabs that will contact 
the surfacing system at the rate of 300 ft2/gal (7.5 m2/L). 

D. Top Surface Installation: 

1. Using a hand trowel, install top surface at a consistent density of 58 pounds, 9 ounces per cubic foot 
(938 kg/m3) to a nominal thickness of 1/2" (12.7 mm). 

2. Allow top surface to cure for a minimum of 48 hours. 

3. At the end of the minimum curing period, verify that the top surface is sufficiently dry and firm to allow 
foot traffic and use without damage to the surface. 

4. Do not allow foot traffic or use of the surface until it is sufficiently cured. 

Specifier Note: Specify provisions for protecting work after installation but prior to acceptance by the 
owner. Coordinate article below with Division 1 Execution Requirements Section. 

3.05 PROTECTION  

A. Protect the installed playground surface from damage resulting from subsequent construction activity 
on the site.  

121



Request for Council Action Memorandum 
Item: Discovery Park – Playground Equipment Replacement   
Meeting Date: March 9, 2020  
Presented By: Margaret McCallum, City Administrator 
 
Recommendations/Council Action/Motion Requested: 
To review a recommendation from the Park Commission to spend up to $85,000.00 on 
replacing the Discovery Park Play Equipment.  
 
Details: 
At part of the Park Commission’s 2020 plan, they planned for $100,000.00 to replace the 
playground equipment at Discovery Park.  
 
At their February 11, 2020 Park Commission meeting, they held an open house on concept 
plans for the park. They had about 5 families with young children attend and provide positive 
feedback.  
 
At the February 18, 2020 Special Park Commission meeting, the Commission recommended to 
council spending up to $85,000.00 on the replacement of the playground equipment (see 
attachment for specific details).  
 
This amount does not include the Poured in Place (PIP) turf. The estimate for the turf will be 
going to the Park Commission at their March 10, 2020 meeting.  
 
The cost for both the equipment, installation and 10 year warranty is $81,094.91.  
 
The Park will include two play areas for differing age groups, a swing set, to swirly chairs, 3 
benches, and additional wood fiber.  
 
The color of the park will be based on the “AL Palette” below.  

122



 
Attachments.  
Discovery Park Plan, Cost, and Colors Document.   
 
 
 
 
 
  

123



 

H:\MAYR\C13120246\1_Corres\C_To Others\2020-03-03_120246 Bid Award Recommendation.docx 

 

March 3, 2020 

 

 

 

City of Mayer 

Attn: Mrs. Margaret McCallum 

413 Bluejay Avenye 

Mayer, MN 55360 

 

 

RE: Bid Results for the 2020 Street Improvements Project 

 

 

Dear Maggie: 

 

Enclosed is the bid tab for the 2020 Street Improvements project.  The project includes the milling and 

paving of various streets in the Coldwater Crossing Development. Nine bids were received and are 

summarized below:  

   

Contractor Total Quote 

Wm. Mueller and Sons, Inc $181,215.40 

Park Construction $193,807.50 

ASTECH Corp $194,100.00 

GMH Asphalt $195,528.00 

Omann Contracting $195,965.30 

Valley Paving $196,852.00 

Molnau Trucking $215,015.00 

Duininck $248,250.00 

Mid Minnesota Hot Mix, Inc. $277,749.02 

 

We have reviewed the bids and recommend awarding the project to the low bidder, Wm. Mueller and 

Sons, Inc. in the amount of $181,215.40.   

 

Please let me know if you have questions or need additional information. 

 

Sincerely, 
Bolton & Menk, Inc. 

 
David P. Martini, P.E. 

 

 

124



CITY OF MAYER

2020 STREET IMPROVEMENTS

BID DATE: MARCH 3, 2020 ‐ 10:00 AM

WM. MUELLER & SONS $181,215.40

PARK CONSTRUCTION $193,807.50

ASTECH $194,100.00

GMH ASPHALT $195,528.00

OMANN CONTRACTING $195,965.30

VALLEY PAVING $196,652.00

MOLNAU TRUCKING $215,015.00

DUININCK $248,250.00

OMG MIDWEST/MN PAVING $277,695.22

TOTAL AMOUNT BIDCONTRACTOR

H:\MAYR\C13120246\6_Plans-Specs\B_Bid Tabulation\120246 Bid Tab.xls 1

125


	1 3.9.20 City Council Meeting Agenda
	2 Council Meeting 021020 (1)
	APPROVE AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMENT
	APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA
	CITY ENGINEER
	COUNCIL REPORTS
	OTHER BUSINESS
	ADJOURN

	3 021020 Workshop Meeting Minutes
	4 Council Meeting 02242020 (1)
	APPROVE AGENDA
	PUBLIC COMMENT
	APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA
	PUBLIC WORKS
	COUNCIL REPORTS
	OTHER BUSINESS
	ADJOURN

	5 Payables
	February 10, 2020

	6 Memo_LTP
	6 Mayer, City of FINAL Long-term Plan 2019-2025
	7 Memo_Streets
	7 Mayer SRP
	7 Mayer SRP ResCalling
	8 Discovery Park
	LSI Proposal
	Mayer_Discovery_Park-SmartPlay 022520-D-Size 34X44.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	D-Size 34X44


	Colors.pdf
	2019 Color Choices
	Palettes 1
	Palettes2
	Palettes3
	Palettes4

	Flagship Only Quote.pdf
	Flagship Proposal

	Color Signoff.pdf
	Color Sign Off


	8 Memo_Park
	9 2020-03-03_120246 Bid Award Recommendation
	9 Mayer 2020 M&O Bid Tab



